GAMANIA DIGITAL ENTERTAINMENT CO.,LTD.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSAND
REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

JUNE 30, 2011 AND 2010
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Report of | ndependent Accountants Trandated from Chinese

PWCR11000048

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Gaméaxgital Entertainment Co., Ltd.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balaheets of Gamania Digital

Entertainment Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries aslwfie 30, 2011 and 2010, and the
related consolidated statements of income, of absmg stockholders’ equity and of

cash flows for the six-month periods then endedhesgé consolidated financial

statements are the responsibility of the Compamasagement. Our responsibility is
to express an opinion on these consolidated fiahrstatements based on our audits.
As described in Note 1(2), we did not audit theaficial statements of certain

consolidated subsidiaries, which statements refieteti assets of $512,190 thousand
and $529,812 thousand, constituting 10.13% and5%4.6f the related consolidated

totals as of June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectialy, total operating revenues of
$333,641 thousand and $550,499 thousand, constjt@i26% and 19.52% of the

related consolidated totals for the six-month psiohen ended, respectively. Those
financial statements were audited by other audwdnese reports thereon have been
furnished to us, and our opinion expressed heregufar as it relates to the amounts
included for these investee companies and the nrdton disclosed in Note 11(2)

relative to these long-term investments, is basddlys on the reports of the other

auditors.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the éR@overning the Examination of

Financial Statements by Certified Public Accourgéiaind generally accepted auditing

standards in the Republic of China. Those rulesséandards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurancetathether the financial statements
are free of material misstatement. An audit inekRicexamining, on a test basis,

evidence supporting the amounts and disclosuréseifinancial statements. An audit

also includes assessing the accounting princied and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall Gi@rstatement presentation. We

believe that our audits and the reports of the ro#tuelitors provide a reasonable basis
for our opinion.



In our opinion, based on our audits and the repoftsthe other auditors, the

consolidated financial statements referred to alpsgsent fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Gamania Digital Entertaient Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries as
of June 30, 2011 and 2010, and the results of thggrations and their cash flows for
the six-month periods then ended, in conformityhwthe “Guidelines Governing the

Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities dssu and generally accepted
accounting principles in the Republic of China.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, Taiwan

August 23, 2011

The accompanying consolidated financial statemangsnot intended to present the
financial position and results of operations andghcdlows of the Company in
accordance with accounting principles and practyse®erally accepted in countries and
jurisdictions other than the Republic of China. Bt@ndards, procedures and practices
utilized in the Republic of China governing the &uaf such consolidated financial
statements may differ from those generally accepteduntries and jurisdictions other
than the Republic of China. Accordingly, the accampng consolidated financial
statements and report of the independent accosnsaatnot intended for use by those
who are not informed about the accounting prinaipde auditing standards generally
accepted in the Republic of China, and their apgbas in practice.

As the financial statements are the responsibiliof the management,
PricewaterhouseCoopers cannot accept any lialiditthe use of, or reliance on, the
English translation or for any errors or misundamgings that may derive from the
translation.



ASSETS

Current Asse:
Cash and cash equivalents (Note ¢
Notes receivabl- third parties- net (Note 42))
Accounts receivabl- third parties- net (Note 43))
Other receivable (Note 415))
Inventories- net (Note 44))
Prepaid expense
Deferred income tax ass current (Note 4(5))
Other current asset

Long-term Investmen
Financial assefat fair value throug profit or los: -
nor-curren (Note 45))
Financial assets carried at c- nor-current (Note 26))
Long-term investmen- accounted for under the equi
method (Note <7))

Property, Plant and Equipme- net (Notes 48) and ¢)
Cos
Lanc
Buildings
Machinery and equipme
Transpurtation equipmer
Office equipmer
Leasehold improvemer
Other equipmel
Total Cos
Less: Accumulated depreciat
Accumulated impairrrnt
Construction in progress and prepayments for eqesipr

IntangibleAsset (Note 49))
Trademar
Goodwill
Deferred pension cost (Notel6))
Other intangible asse- net (Note 49))

Other Assel

Refundable depos

Deferred charge- net (Notes 4(1C) and £)

Deferred income tax ass¢ nor-current (Note 4(5))
Other asse - othel (Note 416))

TOTAL ASSETS

GAMANIA DIGITAL ENTERTAINMENT CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

2011

$ 1,758,816
130,637
1,293,043

45,872

137,781

85,048

1,683

6,487

3,459,367

2,850
114,294

5.076

122,220

156,837
212,943
824,805

205,984
51,718
18,067

1,470,354

714,739)

4,326)
13,614

764,903

4,456
84,659
1,475
5,341

95,931

54,194
421,712
27,146
16,417

519,469

$ 4,961,890

(
(

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

$ 1,399,576
129,186
1,388,816

28,151

59,415

30,935

34,311

3,068

3,073,458

2,850
114,294

2,013

119,157

147,751
182,701
661,397
1,033
161,735
45,315
10,294
1,210,226
626,890)
4,182)
14,225

593,379

77,365
17312
166

78,843
48,254

604,615
20,161

8,082

681,112

$ 4,545,949

JUNE 30,
(EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS OF NEW TAIWAN DOLLARS)
201C

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Current Liabilitie:
Shor-term loans (Note 41))
Shor-terr notes and bills payab(Note 4(:2))
Notes payabl- third partie:
Accounts payabl- third partie
Accounts payab - related partie (Note 5)
Income tax payable (Note <5))
Accrued expenses (Note 9))
Other payablesNote 4(29))
Unearned revenue collected in adv:
Current portion of lon-term loan (Note4(14))
Other current liabilitie

Long-term liablities
Financialliabilities at fair value through profit or Ic -

nor-curren (Note 4(:3))
Long-term loans(Note 4(:4))

Other Liability
Accrued pension liabilities (Note <6))
Guarantee depos
Deferredincome tax liabilities- nor-curren (Note 4(:5))
Other liabilities- othel

Total Liabilities

Stockholders' Equi
Common stoc

Common stock (Note

Stock subscription received in advai(Note 422))
Capital reserve (Note 47))

Paic-in capital in excess of pe

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipt
Retained earnin

Legal reserve (Nos4(18) and 4(.9))

Retained earnings ote 4(19))
Other adjustments to stockholc’ equity

Cumulative translation adjustme

Unrealized net Ics

Treasury stock (Note 21))

Minority interes
Total Stockholders' Equi

Commitments and Contingent Liabilities (Nott
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

2011

$ 110,796

3,571
424,612
70,391
59,551
468,683
367,183
673,673
23,411
9,404

2,211,275

3,426
15,853

19,279

9,523
6
1,892

11,421

[ . LT

2,241,975

1,562,883
1,129

827,114
221

140,909
201,707

( 7,523)
( 1,126)
( 35,580)
2,689,734

30,181

2,719,915

$ 4,961,890

The accompanying notes are an integral part okthessolidated financial statements.

See report of independent accountants dated AQGUR011.
~ 4 ~

201C

$ 231,164
19,996

1,071

219,844

44,336
396,345
512,926
414,855

23,200

6,268

1,870,005

2,805

17,473

20,278

9,659
6

452

10,117

1,900,400

1,656,376

852,683
221

117,649
325,242

42,164
( 565)
( 370,182)

2,623,588

21,961

2,645,549

$ 4,545,949



GAMANIA DIGITAL ENTERTAINMENT CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATEDSTATEMENTS OF INCOME

FOR THE SIX-MONTH PERIODS ENDED JUNE 30,

(EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS OF NEW TAIWAN DOLLARS)

Operating revenu
Sales revent
Sales returr
Sales allowanct

Net sales reveni
Service revenue

Total cperating revenut
Operating cos
Cost of goods sold (Note(4), 4(23) and 5
Gross profi

Operating expenses (Notes 3) anc 5)
Selling expenst
General and administrative ex|se:
Research and development expe
Total operating expens
Operating incorr
Non-operating incom
Interest incom
Foreign exchange g¢
Rental incom
Gain onvaluatior of financial assets (Note(13))
Miscellaneous incon
Total ron-operating incom
Non-operating expens
Interest expen:
Investment loss accounted for under the e
method (Note <7))
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equip!
Other investment lo
Miscellaneous loss
Total nor-operating exgnse:
Income before income t
Income tax expense (Notel5))
Consolidated net incom
Attributable tc
Equity holders of the Compa
Minority interes

Basic earnings per share (in dolli (Note 420))
Profit attributable to equity holders ofthe Comg $§ 1.65 § 1.08 $

Minority interestincome
Consolidated net incom

Diluted earnings per share (in dollars) (Not20))
Profit attributable to equity holders ofthe Comg § 1.61 § 1.06 $

Minority interestincome
Consolidated net incom

2011 2010

3,582,701 § 2,846,368

( 7,937) ( 64,991)
( 11,795) ( 3,560)

3,562,969 2,777,817

38,981 41,730

3,601,950 2,819,547

( 2,064,016) ( 1,424,583)
1,537,934 1,394,964

( 358,298) ( 393,847)
( 620,031) ( 480,965)
( 290,533) ( 219,796)
( 1,268,862) ( 1,094,608)

269,072 300,356

1,571 873

- 2,981

5,451 468

350 418

8,149 5,292

15,521 10,032

( 1,371)( 2,378)
( 1,669) ( 3,782)
( 172) ( 5,315)

( 3,323) -
( 22,066) ( 45,090)
( 28,601) ( 56,565)

255,992 253,823

( 87,899) ( 92,004)
168,093 § 161,819

166,389 § 160,337

1,704 1,482

168,093 § 161,819

2011 2010
Before After Before After

income tax income tax income tax income tax

1.66 §$§ 1.05

.01 0.01 0.01 0.01

$ 166 $§ 1.09 $ 1.67 §$§ 1.06

1.61 § 1.02

. 0.01 . 0.01

$ 162 § 1.07 $ 1.62 $§ 1.03

The accompanying notes are an integral part okthessolidated financial statements.

’\/5/\./

See report of independent accountants dated AQGR011.



Common Stock

GAMANIA DIGITAL ENTERTAINMENT CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDEREBQUITY

FOR THE SIX-MONTH PERIODS ENDED JUNE 30,

(EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS OF NEW TAIWAN DOLLARS)

Capital Reserve

tefeed Earnings

Stock
Subscription Capital Surplus from Cumulative
Received Paid-in Capital in Gain on Disposal Retained Translation Unrealized
Common Stock in Advance Excess of Par of Assets Legal Reserve Earnings Adjustments Net Loss Treasury Stock  Minority Interest Total
2010

Balance at January 1, 2010 $ 1,604,951 $ 12,437 $ 789,316 $ 221 $ 86,730 $ 395,413 $ 35,674 ($ 565)  ($§ 370,182) $ 30,335 $ 2,584,330
Employee stock options exercised 38,988 - 63,367 - - - - - - - 102,355
Capital collected in advance transferred to

common stock 12,437 ( 12,437) - - - - - - - -
Distribution of 2009 earnings (Note 1):

Legal reserve - - - - 30,919 30,919) - - - - -

Cash dividends - - - - - 197,999) - - - - ( 197,999)
Consolidated net income for the period - - - - - 160,337 - - - 1,482 161,819
Effect of change in ownership percentage

of investee company - - - - - 1,590) - - - - ( 1,590)
Cumulative translation adjustments - - - - - - 6,490 - - - 6,490
Changes in minority interest - - - - - - - - - ( 9,856) ( 9,856)
Balance at June 30, 2010 $§ 1,656,376 $ - $ 852,683 $ 221 $ 117,649 $ 325,242 $ 42,164 ($ 565) (§__370.182) $ 21,961 § 2,645,549

2011

Balance at January 1, 2011 $ 1,657,020 $ 6,186 $ 862,382 $ 221 $ 117,649 $ 399,094 ($ 5,731)  ($ 1,126) ($ 370,182) $ 29,876 $ 2,695,389
Employee stock options exercised 18,077 1,129 27,271 - - - - - - - 46,471
Capital collected in advance transferred to

common stock 6,186 ( 6,186) - - - - - - - - -
Cancellation of treasury stock ( 118,400) - ( 62,539) - - 153,663) - - 334,602 - -
Distribution of 2010 earnings (Note 2):

Legal reserve - - - - 23,260 23,260) - - - - -

Cash dividends - - - - - 186,035) - - - -« 186,035)
Consolidated net income for the period - - - - - 166,389 - - - 1,704 168,093
Effect of change in ownership percentage

of investee company - - - - - 818) - - - - ( 818)
Cumulative translation adjustments - - - - - - ( 1,792) - - - ( 1,792)
Changes in minority interest - - - - - - - - - ( 1,399) ( 1,399)
Balance at June 30, 2011 $§ 1,562,883 $ 1,129 $ 827,114 $ 221 $ 140,909 $ 201,707 3 7,523) ($ 1,126) (§ 35,580) $ 30,181 $§ 2,719,915

Note 1: The amounts approved by the Company’s ktadkrs for the distribution of 2009 earnings foe tirectors’ and supervisors’ remuneration andleyegs’ bonuses are $5,565 and $41,740, respagtivbkereas the amounts deducted from the Inconte rSémtfor
2009 were $5,679 and $42,596, respectively. Tfierdnce of $114 and $856, respectively was adjlistéhe income statement for the six-month peended June 30, 2010.
Note 2: The amounts approved by the Company’s ktadkrs for the distribution of 2010 earnings foe tirectors’ and supervisors’ remuneration andleyegs’ bonuses are $5,040 and $38,200, respagtivbkereas the amounts deducted from the Inconte rSémtfor
2010 were $5,520 and $41,401, respectively. Tfierdnce of $480 and $3,201, respectively was &eljuis the income statement for the six-month pkeinded June 30, 2011.

The accompanying notes are an integral part okthessolidated financial statements.
See report of independent accountants dated A2gu&011.
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GAMANIA DIGITAL ENTERTAINMENT CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE SIX-MONTH PERIODS ENDED JUNE 30,
(EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS OF NEW TAIWAN DOLLARS)

2011 2010

Cash flows from operating activities
Consolidated net income $ 168,093 $ 161,819
Adjustments to reconcile consolidated net incomeet cash
provided by operating activities:

Loss (gain) on valuation of financial assets 153 ( 45)
(Reversal of allowance) provision for sales meu ( 284) 747
Provision for doubtful accounts 9,519 3,633
Provision for decline in market value of inventarie 727 5,541
Investment loss accounted for under the equéshod 1,669 3,782
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equigmen 172 5,315
Depreciation and amortization 243,389 214,008
Prepaid expense and deferred charges chargeleo

expenses - 42,934
Deferred charges charged to other loss 22,695 -
Deferred income tax assets 22,207 53,289

Changes in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in:

Notes receivable — third parties ( 6,228) ( 16,183)
Accounts receivable — third parties ( 107,363) ( 270,949)
Other receivables — third parties ( 16,560) 11,076
Inventories ( 108,512) ¢ 4,372)
Prepaid expenses ( 32,094) ( 4,033)
Other current assets ( 2,178) ( 422)
Increase (decrease) in:
Notes payable — third parties 3,516 ( 8,985)
Accounts payable — third parties 187,354 3,113
Accounts payable — related party 70,391 -
Income tax payable 21,097 31,754
Accrued expenses 31,672 9,842
Other payables — third parties ( 152,278) 126,555
Unearned revenue collected in advance 356,292 49,782
Other current liabilities ( 764)  ( 52,565)
Accrued pension liabilities 305 1,014
Net cash provided by operating activities 712,990 366,650

(Continued on next page)



GAMANIA DIGITAL ENTERTAINMENT CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE SIX-MONTH PERIODS ENDED JUNE 30,

(EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS OF NEW TAIWAN DOLLARS)

Cash flows from investing activities

Increase in minority interest acquisition price

Decrease in other financial assets - current

Increase in financial assets at fair value thropigtiit or
loss — non-current

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment

Increase in deferred charges

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant andpmgant
and deferred charges

Increase in other intangible assets

Increase in refundable deposits, net

Increase in other assets — other

Decrease in financial liabilities at fair valuedhgh profit
or loss — non-current

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
(Decrease) increase in short-term loans
Increase in short-term notes and bills payable
Decrease in long-term loans
Decrease in guarantee deposits
Decrease in other liabilities
Exercise of employee stock options
Changes in minority interest
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and casbatants

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the gberio

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information
Cash paid during the period for:
Interest

Income taxes

Cash paid for the acquisition of property, plant @gquipment:

Property, plant and equipment acquired
Payable at end of the period
Payable at beginning of the period

Cash paid

Non-cash flows from financing activities
Cash dividends declared

2011 2010
- (3 38,337)
- 2,000
- 2,850
134,564) ( 104,761)
43,047) ( 129,544)
1,420 -
160) -
5,997 ( 1,164)
7,614) ( 715)
- ( 2,850)
189,962) ( 272,521)
44,186) 85,611
- 19,996
19,445) ( 9,320)
- 374)
152) 1)
46,477 102,355
1,399) 432
19,3095) 198.699
3.587) 1,737
500,136 294,565
1,258,680 1,105,011
1,758,816 $ 1,399,576
1,392 $ 2,317
33,517 $ 983
127,194 $ 119,962
30,359) ( 25,700)
37,729 10,499
134,564 $ 104,761
186,035 $ 197,999

The accompanying notes are an integral part okthessolidated financial statements.

See report of independent accountants dated AQIR011.



GAMANIA DIGITAL ENTERTAINMENT CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011 AND 2010
(EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS OF NEW TAIWAN DOLLARS,
EXCEPT AS OTHERWISE INDICATED)

1. HISTORY AND ORGANIZATION

(1) Gamania Digital Entertainment Co., Ltd. (the Compawas incorporated in June
1995 under the provisions of the Company Law ofRlepublic of China (R.O.C.) as a
company limited by shares. As of June 30, 201&,tttal authorized capital was
$2,500,000, consisting of 250 million shares of own stock (including 12 million
shares of employee stock options), at a par val$d® (NT dollars) per share, and the
issued and outstanding capital was $1,562,883.Cdmpany is engaged in software
services. As of June 30, 2011, the Company andoitsolidated subsidiaries had
approximately 1,700 employees.

(2) Consolidated subsidiaries

A)
% of shares held as
of June 30
Name of company Relationship Main activities 2011 2010

Gamania Holdings Ltd. Note 1 Investment holdingipany 100% 100%

Gamania International Holdings Note 2 Investment holdings 100% 100%
Ltd.

Gamania Digital Entertainment  Note 3 Design and salesf software 100% 100%
(Japan) Co., Ltd. sales of hardware

Gamania China Holdings Ltd. Note 3 Investment imgjsl 98.50% 97.91%

Gamania Western Holdings Ltd. Note 3 Investment holdings 100% 100%

Gamania Netherlands Holdings Note 3 Investment holdings 100% -
Cooperatief U.A.

Firedog Studio Company Ltd. Note 3 Design andaedeand 100% -

development of software

Gash Plus (Hong Kong) Note 3 Software and eleittron 100% -
Company Limited information services and sales

Gamania Digital Entertainment  Note 4 Design and sales of software 98.50%  97.91
(H.K.) Co., Ltd.

Gamania Sino Holdings Ltd. Note 4 Investment holdings 98.50% 97.91%

Gamania Digital Entertainment  Note 5 Design and sales of software 100% -
(Europe) B.V.

Gamania Digital Entertainment  Note 6 Design and sales of software 100% 100¥%
(U.S)) Co., Ltd.

Gamania Digital Entertainment  Note 7 Design and sales of software 98.50%  97.91

(Beijing) Co., Ltd.



% of shares held as

of June 30
Name of company Relationship Main activities 2011 2010
Gameastor Digital Entertainment Note 1 Software services and sales 99.28%  99.28
Co., Ltd. (Note 8)
Gamania Asia Investments Note 1 Investment holdings 100% 100%
Co., Ltd.
Gamania Korea Co., Ltd. Note 1 Design and salesftivare 100% 100%
Fantasy Fish Digital Games Note 1 Design and research and 99.75%  99.50%
Co., Ltd. development of software
Fundation Digital Entertainment Note 1 Sale and publishing of 100% 100%
Co., Ltd. magazines and periodicals
Gamania Digital Entertainment  Note 1 Investment holdings 100% 100%
Labuan Holdings, Ltd.
Redgate Games Co., Ltd. Note 1 Design and reseastftware  100% 100%
Seedo Games Co., Ltd. Note 1 Design and reseastftofare 100% 100%
Playcoo Co. Note 1 Design and research of softwa®25%  75.25%
Two Tigers Co., Ltd. Note 1 Animation production %1 -
Gash Plus Co., Ltd. Note 1 Software and electronic 100% -
information services and sales
Gama Games Co., Ltd. Note 3 Design and researstfivfare  100% -

Note 1: Majority-owned subsidiary

Note 2: A majority-owned subsidiary of Gamania Hiog$ Ltd.

Note 3: A majority-owned subsidiary of Gamania fnegional Holdings Ltd.

Note 4: A majority-owned subsidiary of Gamania @hioldings Ltd.

Note 5: A majority-owned subsidiary of Gamania Nethnds Holdings Cooperatief U.A.
Note 6: A majority-owned subsidiary of Gamania VéestHoldings Ltd.

Note 7: A majority-owned subsidiary of Gamania Shadings Ltd.

Note 8: Gameastor Digital Entertainment Co., Lfdrmerly Taiwan Index Co., Ltd., has

completed its change of registration in SeptemB&n2

B) The information on investee companies, Gamamee& Co., Ltd., Gamania Digital

Entertainment (H.K.) Co., Ltd. and Firedog Studiontpany Ltd. were based on
financial statements audited by other auditorstlier six-month period ended June
30, 2011.

C) The information on investee companies, Gamed&itptal Entertainment Co., Ltd.,

Gamania Korea Co., Ltd. and Gamania Digital Eniemant (H.K.) Co., Ltd., were
based on financial statements audited by othert@nsdior the six-month period
ended June 30, 2010.

D) The financial statements of the above investaapanies which were audited by

other auditors reflect total assets of $512,190 $5@29,812, constituting 10.13%
and 11.65% of the related consolidated totals agusfe 30, 2011 and 2010,



respectively, and total operating revenues of $88Band $550,499, constituting
9.26% and 19.52% of the related consolidated tdtalthe six-month periods then

ended, respectively.
(3) Changes in the consolidated subsidiaries:

No subsidiary was deconsolidated from the codatdd financial statements during
the six-month period ended June 30, 2011. Theoidtlg were majority-owned

subsidiaries that were newly included in the consbéd financial statements:

% of shares held as

of June 30,

Name of company  Relationship Main activities 2011 2010 _Note
Two Tigers Co., Ltd. Note 1 Animation production %1 - Note 6
Gash Plus Co., Ltd. Note 1 Software and electronid00% - Note 5

information services and
sales
Firedog Studio Note 2 Design and research of 100% - Note 6
Company Ltd. software
Gash Plus (Hong Kong)  Note 2 Software and electronic 100% - Note 5
Company Limited information services and
sales
Gamania Netherlands Note 2 Investment holdings 100% - Note 7
Holdings Cooperatief
U.A.
Gamania Digital Note 3 Software services and 100% - Note 7
Entertainment sales
(Europe) B.V.
Gama Games Co., Ltd.  Note 2 Design and research and 100% - Note 4

development of software
Note 1: Majority-owned subsidiary.
Note 2: A majority-owned subsidiary of Gamania intgional Holdings Ltd.

Note 3: A majority-owned subsidiary of Gamania Nethnds Holdings Cooperatief U.A.

Note 4: The Company was established in the secoadeay of 2011.
Note 5: The Company was established in the firartgu of 2011.
Note 6: The Company was established in the founttrter of 2010.
Note 7: The Company was established in the thiedtgu of 2010.

(4) Majority-owned subsidiaries not being consakedi None.
(5) Difference in accounting period among the Conypand the subsidiaries: None.

(6) Difference in the accounting policies adoptatbag the Company and the subsidiaries:

None.
(7) Special operation risk of foreign subsidiaridsne.



(8) Nature and extent of the restrictions on fuaahittance from subsidiaries to the parent
company: None.

(9) The Company’s and its subsidiaries’ earningsrithutions are restricted by enactment
or contract: None.

(10) The subsidiaries hold the Company’s stocklzmtts: None.

(11) Convertible bonds and new stocks are issudtidgubsidiaries: None.

(12) Other consequential items to the consolidatehcial statements: None.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements of the Compard its subsidiaries (collectively
referred herein as the Group) are prepared in conitip with the “Guidelines Governing

the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securitiesuers” and generally accepted
accounting principles in the Republic of China. eH®ignificant accounting policies of the
Group are summarized below:

(1) Principles of consolidation

A) All majority-owned subsidiaries or controlledtiies, which meet the criteria of
the amended Statement of Financial Accounting StalsdNo. 7, “Consolidated
Financial Statements”, are included in the constéid financial statements.
Effective January 1, 2008, the Company preparesgi@lyaconsolidated financial
statements.

B) The results of operations of a subsidiary acduished in the consolidated financial
statements from the date of acquisition. Underahended SFAS No. 7, the
result of operations of such subsidiary is excludesim the consolidated
statements of income effective the date on whiehGbmpany loses control over
the subsidiary. For the initial year of adoptionSFFAS No. 7, restatement of
prior year’s financial statements is not required.

C) All significant intercompany balances and tratisms are eliminated in the
consolidation.

(2) Translation of financial statements of foreign Sidiaries
Assets and liabilities of the foreign subsidiar@es translated into New Taiwan dollars
using the exchange rate at the balance sheet elqiiity accounts are translated at
historical rates, except for beginning retainechimys which is transferred from prior
year's ending retained earnings, and profit ansl da@sounts which are translated using
weighted-average rate. Exchange differences arded as cumulative translation
adjustments and are included as a component dirsituters’ equity.




(3) Foreign currency transactions

The accounts of the Company and its subsidiariesnaintained in New Taiwan

dollars and functional currencies, respectively.anBactions arising in foreign

currencies are translated into New Taiwan dollard &unctional currencies at the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the dctiohs. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies aanslated into New Taiwan dollars at
the exchange rates prevailing at the balance staet Foreign exchange gains or
losses are included in the current period resdleperations.

(4) Criteria for classifying current or non-currensets and liabilities
A) Assets that meet one of the following criterige alassified as current assets;
otherwise they are classified as non-current assets
a) Assets arising from operating activities thag¢ axpected to be realized or
consumed, or are intended to be sold within thenaboperating cycle;
b) Assets held mainly for trading purposes;
c) Assets that are expected to be realized witBimanths from the balance sheet
date; and
d) Cash and cash equivalents, excluding restricésth and cash equivalents and
those that are to be exchanged and used to palyabifities more than 12
months after the balance sheet date.
B) Liabilities that meet one of the following crii@ are classified as current liabilities;
otherwise they are classified as non-current st

a) Liabilities arising from operating activitiesathare expected to be paid within
the normal operating cycle;

b) Liabilities arising mainly from trading actives;
c) Liabilities that are to be paid within 12 monthem the balance sheet date; and
d) Liabilities for which the repayment date canhetextended unconditionally to
more than 12 months after the balance sheet date.
(5) Financial assets or liabilities at fair value thgb profit or loss

A) Financial assets at fair value through profit @sl@are recognized as of the trade
date at fair value for equity stocks. Financiaeds at fair value through profit or
loss are recognized as of the settlement datdaratdflme for bonds and beneficiary
certificates.

B) These financial instruments are subsequently reumedsand stated at fair value,
and the gain or loss is recognized in profit oslosThe fair value of listed stocks,
closed-end mutual funds and depositary receigiased on latest quoted fair prices
of the accounting period. The fair value of oped-enutual funds is based on the
net asset value at the balance sheet date.




C) Financial instruments that meet one of the follayvicriteria are designated as
financial assets or financial liabilities at faalue through profit or loss:

a) The instrument is a hybrid instrument.

b) The instrument is designated as a financial agsidhlity at fair value through
profit or loss in order to eliminate or substaryiakeduce the inconsistency in
accounting measurement or recognition.

c) The instrument is managed in accordance with theu@s documented risk
management and investment strategies, and itsrpefwe is evaluated on a fair
value basis.

(6) Financial assets carried at cost
A) Investments in unlisted equity instruments are gaced initially at its fair value
plus transaction costs that are directly attribletab the acquisition of the financial
asset.
B) If there is any objective evidence that the finahasset is impaired, the impairment
loss is recognized in profit or loss. Such impantloss cannot be reversed.

(7) Notes and accounts receivable and other receivables
A) Receivables arising from the sale of goods or sesvtio customers are recognized
as notes and accounts receivable. Other reces/adnie those arising from
transactions other than sale of goods or services.
B) The Group measures notes and accounts receivathlether receivables based on
the aging and collectibility of receivables andtpagerience of bad debts.

C) The Group assesses whether objective evidence gaiiment exists individually
for financial assets at the balance sheet datee siacuary 1, 2011. Once the
objective evidence of impairment exists, an impamirioss is recognized.

(8) Inventories

The Group uses the perpetual inventory system hadotiginal cost is the cost to

obtain the assets. Cost is determined using thightesl-average method. The

ending balance of inventory is valued at the lowfetost or net realizable value based
on specific identification. The net realizable uvalis determined based on the
estimated selling price of an inventory item ldes éstimated costs of completion.

(9) Long-term equity investments accounted for underettuity method
A) Long-term equity investments in which the Companids more than 20% of the

investee company’s voting shares or has the aliigxercise significant influence
on the investee’s operational decisions are aceduiar under the equity method.
The excess of the initial investment cost overdbguired net asset value of the
investee attributable to goodwill is no longer atized and carries on tests of
impairment every year. Retroactive adjustment ld amount of goodwill
amortized in previous years is not required.




B) Investment loss on the non-controlled entities avbich the Company has the
ability to exercise significant influence is recampd to the extent that the amount
of long-term investments in such investees is amitilown to zero. However, if
the Company continues to provide endorsementsagtees or financial support
for such investees, the investment loss is recegnintinuously in proportion to
the Company’s equity interest in such investees.thé case of controlled entities,
the Company recognizes all the losses incurreduloh €ntities that will not be
covered by other stockholders. When the operatainsuch investees become
profitable, the Company recognizes the profits luthie amount of losses
previously recognized by the Company is fully rez@d.

C) Exchange differences arising from translation oé thnancial statements of
overseas investee companies accounted for undexqiliey method are recorded
as “cumulative translation adjustments” under shobtter’'s equityand recognized
in proportion to the percentage of shares hgithe Company.

D) The capital reserve and long-term investment ansoarg adjusted by the variance
between the investment cost and net assets of nthestee due to the
disproportionate acquisition or decrease of sharesonnection with the capital
increase or decrease of the investee company.helbalance of capital reserve
from long-term investment is not sufficient, thetained earnings is debited.

(10) Property, plant and equipment

A) Depreciation is provided on the straight-line metheing the estimated useful
lives of the assets plus one year as salvage valliee subsidiaries’ property,
plant and equipment are depreciated on a straightibasis according to the
estimated useful lives of the assets less the attnsalvage value, except for
leasehold improvements, which is based on the aonperiod of the asset.  The
estimated useful lives are 3 to 55 years for bagdiand 2 to 5 years for the other
property, plant and equipment.

B) When an asset is sold or retired, the cost andnawlated depreciation are
removed from the respective accounts and the negudtin or loss is included in
current non-operating income (expense).

C) Major renewals or betterments are capitalized aegreatiated accordingly.
Maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred.

(11) Deferred charges
A) Costs of software and copyrights are capitalizedl @nortized under the straight-
line basis over the estimated useful lives.
B) Royalty payments for operating online game software capitalized and
amortized based on the period of the contract ducked based on actual units of

play.




(12) Other intangible assets

A) Franchises for game development are recordext@uisition cost and amortized
using the straight-line method over the estimatdise life. Franchises could
be deducted from franchises payable amounting tdo@8ed on sales revenues.

B) Franchises for sales of on-line games are recbrdt acquisition cost and
amortized over the estimated life of 3 years usiggstraight-line method.

C) Comic copyright is recorded at acquisition castl amortized over the estimated
life of 1 year using the straight-line method.

(13) Impairment of non-financial assets

A) Impairment loss is recognized when the recoMeramount of an asset is less than
the book value due to changes in environment ouroences of some events.
Recoverable amount is the higher of net fair valuealue in use of an asset. Net
fair value is the selling price of an asset in am’s-length transaction between
knowledgeable and willing parties, less the cosiigposal. Value in use is the
present value of the future cash flows expectdsktderived from an asset.

B) If there is an indication that an asset hasversd its value of the impairment loss
recognized in the prior period, a gain is recogmimethe extent of the impairment
loss recognized. No recovery in impairment logee®gnized for goodwill.

(14) Share-based payment - employee compensaton pl

A) The employee stock options granted from Jandar3004 through December 31,
2007 are accounted for in accordance with EITF B2-EITF 92-071 and EITF
92-072, “Accounting for Employee Stock Options” gsescribed by the
Accounting Research and Development Foundation,®,@ated March 17, 2003.
Under the share-based employee compensation plampeaensation cost is
recognized using the intrinsic value method and fomna disclosures of net
income and earnings per share are prepared indaome with the R.O.C. SFAS
No. 39, “Accounting for Share—based Payment”

B) For the grant date of the share-based paymeaeawnts set on or after January 1,
2008, the Company shall measure the services exteiuring the vesting period
by reference to the fair value of the equity instemts granted and account for
those amounts as payroll expenses druing thatgerio

(15) Employees’ bonuses and directors’ and supany/isemuneration

Effective January 1, 2008, pursuant to EITF 96-06the Accounting Research and

Development Foundation, R.O.C., dated March 16, 7200Accounting for

Employees’ Bonuses and Directors’ and SupervisB&muneration”, the costs of

employees’ bonuses and directors’ and supervisensuneration are accounted for as

expenses and liabilities, provided that such retmgnis required under legal or




constructive obligation and the amounts can beneséid reasonably. However, if
the accrued amounts for employees’ bonuses andctalise and supervisors’
remuneration are significantly different from thetwaml distributed amounts resolved
by the stockholders at their annual stockholdersetimg subsequently, the differences
shall be recognized as gain or loss in the follgmear. In addition, according to
EITF 97-127 of the Accounting Research and Devekmriroundation, R.O.C., dated
March 31, 2008, “Criteria for Listed Companies ial€lilating the Number of Shares
of Employees’ Stock Bonus”, the Company calculates number of shares of
employees’ stock bonus based on the closing pfiteeoCompany's common stock at
the previous day of the stockholders’ meeting lelthe year following the financial
reporting year, and after taking into account ttiects of ex-rights and ex-dividends.

(16) Deferred income tax assets and income tax

A) Income tax of the Company is provided based on wadany income after
adjusting for permanent differences. The provisfon income tax includes
deferred income tax resulting from items reportedifferent and same periods
for tax and financial reporting purposes. Oveunder provision of prior years’
income tax liabilities is included in current yearhcome tax expense. When a
change in the tax laws is enacted, the deferrediabpity or asset is recomputed
accordingly in the period of change. The diffeeermetween the new amount
and the original amount, that is, the effect ofraes in the deferred tax liability
or asset, is reported as an adjustment to cumentrie tax expense (benefit).

B) The 10% additional corporate income tax is recorethcome tax expense in the
period the stockholders approve a resolution @imghe earnings.

C) The Company’s overseas subsidiaries’ income taxessabject to their local

regulations.
(17) Retirement plan

A) Under the defined benefit pension plan, net pecipdinsion costs are recognized
in accordance with the actuarial calculations. Tie¢ periodic pension costs
include service cost, interest cost, expected metur plan assets, unrecognized
net transition obligation and amortization of gaiois losses on plan assets.
Unrecognized net transition obligation is amortizeda straight-line basis over
15 years. Minimum pension liabilities in the intarfinancial statements were
adjusted in accordance with the net periodic pensast and funds contributed.

B) Under the defined contribution pension plan, netiogéc pension costs are
recognized as incurred.




(18) Treasury stock
A) Treasury stocks acquired are stated at cost ubegveighted-average method

and reported as a deduction from stockholders’tgdguithe balance sheet.

B) Upon disposal, the related gain is credited to itehpeserve-treasury stock
transaction” and any loss is offset against thstahreserve account. However,
when the balance of this capital reserve accouimsisfficient to offset the loss,
then the remaining amount is charged against edadarnings.

C) Upon registration of cancellation, except for th@ok value sum of “common
stock” and “capital reserve-additional paid-in”, ialin is in proportion to
shareholding, the related gain is credited to ‘tepreserve-treasury stock
transaction” and any loss is offset against thigtahreserve account. However,
when the balance of this capital reserve accouimsisfficient to offset the loss,
then the remaining amount is charged against edadéarnings.

(19) Revenues, costs and expenses

A) Costs from development of software for sale aregeized as research expense
before establishing technical feasibility.

B) Revenue from prepaid cards for on-line games isrdsd and is recognized based
on points consumed.

C) Revenue from software and other merchandise isgrezed when the earning
process is substantially completed and the revenealized or realizable.

D) Sales returns are estimated based on a perceritagies

E) Costs and expenses are recognized as incurred.

F) Commissions received on prepaid cards from theiren-Jame providers is
deferred and recognized as revenue when servieggraered.

(20) Earnings per share

A) The computation of earnings per share is as\!

Basic earnings per share: net income divided bywhighted-average number of
shares outstanding during the period.

Diluted earnings per share: the computation isdfu@me as basic earnings per
share, except that the potential dilutive sharesaasumed to have been converted
to common stock at the beginning of the period metdincome is adjusted by the
amount associated with the conversion.

B) The potential dilutive shares are employee stmukons and estimated shares of
employees’ bonuses when distributing stock. Themg@any adopted the
“treasury stock method” in computing the dilutiviieet of the employee stock
options and the employees’ bonuses.




(21) Use of estimates
The preparation of consolidated financial statementconformity with generally
accepted accounting principles requires managentenimake estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts atassd liabilities and disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the datehef financial statements, and the
amounts of revenues and expenses during the negaeiriod. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

(22) Operating segments
The Company discloses the segment information cora@ance with the internal
management report provided to the chief operata@sibn-maker. The Company’s
chief operating decision-maker is the chief exe®utofficer, who distributes
resources and assesses performance.
Effective January 1, 2011, in accordance with ttedeBnent of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 41, “Operating Segments”, the Compdisgloses the segment
information in the consolidated financial reportglanot in the stand-alone financial
statements.

3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

(1) Notes and accounts receivable, other receigable
Effective January 1, 2011, the Company and its dbimesubsidiaries adopted the
amended Statement of Financial Accounting Standbi@ls34, “Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement”. Under the amendmudatd, if there is any objective
evidence that the notes and accounts receivalbler o#ceivables and other rights of credit
are impaired, an impairment loss (or provision #wubtful accounts) is recognized
immediately. The adoption of this regulation had gignificant effect on the
consolidated financial statements as of and fostkenonth period ended June 30, 2011.

(2) Operating segments
Effective January 1, 2011, the Company and its dtimeubsidiaries adopted the newly
issued Statement of Financial Accounting Stand&ids 41, “Operating Segments” to
replace Statement of Financial Accounting Stand&lds20, “Segment Reporting”. The
Company has restated the segment information asaffor the six-month period ended
June 30, 2010 in accordance with the standard. ablegtion of this regulation had no
effect on the consolidated net income and earnpggsshare for the six-month periods
ended June 30, 2011 and 2010.




4. DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTS

(1) Cash
June 30,
2011 2010
Cash on hand $ 9,731 % 794
Demand deposit and chdng deposi 1,339,440 1,023,832
Time deposits 409,645 374,950

$ 1,758,816 § 1,399,576

(2) Notes receivable net

June 30,
2011 2010
Notes receivable $ 130,653  $ 129,202
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts ( 16) ( 16)

$ 130,637 $ 129,186

(3) Accounts receivable net

June 30,
2011 2010
Accounts receivable $ 1,398,832 $ 1,475,162
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts ( 101,576) ( 80,623)
Allowance for sales returns ( 4,213) ( 5,723)

$ 1,293,043 § 1,388,816

(4) Inventories — net

June 30,
2011 2010
Inventories $ 143,635 § 69,841
Less: Allowance for obsolescence and
market value decline ( 5,854) ( 10,426)
$ 137,781 § 59,415

Related loss recognized for the per
For the six-month periods ended June 30,

2011 2010
Provision for decline in mark
value of inventories $ 727 % 5.541
(Loss) gain on physical count
inventorie: ($ 19) $ 3




(5) Financial assets at fair value through profit @slo- non-current
June 30,
2011 2010

Designated as at financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss:
Callable preferred stock $ 2,850 % 2,850
Adjustment of designated as at fair
value through profit or loss

$ 2,850 § 2,850

For business operation purposes, the Company’s stamsubsidiary, Gamania Asia
Investment Co., Ltd., invested 285 thousand shatr@spar value of $10 (NT dollars)
per share in the amount of $2,850. Such investigembt entitled to a voting right,
profit distribution right and the right to claimrfeemaining property. According to
the investment contract, both parties agreed thaingl the thirty days from the
repurchase base day, which is at the expiraticihree years of settling date or other
documents’ appointment date, the investor can hekidsuer to redeem all of the
preferred stock based on fair value at the repsetmse day. If the fair value will
be lower than the issued price, the issuer willeh&aw repurchase based on the
published price. In accordance with the termshaf preferred stock contract and
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. ‘Pcounting for Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”, the ididyy is accounted for as
Financial assets at fair value through profit @slo

(6) Financial assets carried at cost

June 30,
ltems 2011 2010
Unlisted stocks
Nice Finance Co., Ltd. $ 91,453 $ 91,453
NC Taiwan Co., Ltd. 22,841 22,841

$ 114,294  § 114,294

The above investments were measured at cost $iagddir value cannot be measured
reliably.

(7) Long-term investment accounted for under the equeyhod

A) Details of long-term investment

June 30, 2011 Investment loss for
the six-month
Ownership period ended
Name of investee Original cost _percentage Balance June 30, 2011
Taiwan e-sports Co., Ltd. $ 32,000 37.65% $ 5,076 (3% 1,669)




June 30, 2010 Investment loss for
the six-month

Ownership period ended
Name of investee Original cost percentage Balance June 30, 2010
Taiwan e-sports Co., Ltd. $ 30,000 46.15% $ 2,013 ($ 3,782)

B) The related investment loss of $1,669 and $3,782aiwan e-sports Co., Ltd. were
based on its unaudited financial statements fostkienonth periods ended June 30,
2011 and 2010, respectively, as its operating nexemas insignificant for the

Company.
(8) Property, plant and equipment
June 30,
2011 2010
Cost
Land $ 156,837 $ 147,751
Buildings 212,943 182,701
Machinery and equipment 824,805 661,397
Transportation equipment - 1,033
Office equipment 205,984 161,735
Leasehold improvements 51,718 45,315
Other equipment 18,067 10,294
1,470,354 1,210,226
Accumulated depreciation
Buildings ( 43,518) ( 36,204)
Machinery and equipment ( 526,820) ( 433,679)
Transportation equipment - ( 160)
Office equipment ( 115,774)  ( 115,956)
Leasehold improvements ( 21,181) ( 35,087)
Other equipment ( 7,446) ( 5,804)
( 714,739) ( 626,890)
Construction in progress and prepayments
for equipment 13,614 14,225
Less: Accumulated impairment ( 4.,326) ( 4,182)
Book value $ 764,903 $ 593,379
(9) Other intangible assets
June 30,
2011 2010
Franchises for sales of on-line games § 4,456  $
Comic copyright 616 -
Prepayments for franchise 269 166
$ 5,341 $ 166




(10)Deferred charges

June 30,
2011 2010
Royalty payments $ 228,490 $ 491,584
Unamortized expense 193,222 113,031

$ 421,712 $ 004,615

(11)Short-term loans

June 30,
2011 2010
Short-term bank loans $ 110,796 $ 231,164
Annual interest rates 1.30%~6.73% 1.20%~5.00%
Credit lines $ 1,756,638 $ 1,828,799
(12)Short-term notes and bills payable
June 30,
2011 2010
Commercial paper payable $ - $ 20,000
Less: Unamortized discount - ( 4)
$ - $ 19,996
Annual interest rate - 0.35%

(13)Financial liabilities at fair value through profit loss — non-current

June 30,
2011 2010
Designated as at financial liabilities fair
value through profit or loss:

Callable preferred stock liability $ 2,850 § 2,850
Adjustment & designated as at fe

value through profit or loss 576 ( 45)

$ 3,426 § 2,805

For business operation purposes, the Conipsrmgomestic subsidiary, Gameastor
Digital Entertainment Co., Ltd., issued 285 thowukahares of preferred stock at a par
value of $10 (NT dollars) per share in the amour$23850 which was approved by
the Board of Directors on March 30, 2010. At thepigtion of three years from
issuance date, if the fair value of the preferredlsis higher than the appointed base
price, Gameastor Digital Entertainment Co., Ltch oaquest for the redemption of the
stock based on the fair value, otherwise it wiléao redeem the stock based on the
appointed base price. In accordance with the tevintbe preferred stock contract
and Statement of Financial Accounting Standards 349.“Accounting for Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”, Gamed3igital Entertainment Co.,
Ltd. accounted for the preferred stock in “Finahdiabilities at fair value through
profit or loss”.



(14)Long-term loans

Total Period/Terms June 30,
Bank Credit Lines of Repayment 2011 2010
Sumitomo Mitsui JPY 90,000 09.24.2008 ~ 09.23.2011 § - $ 13,390
Banking Corporation (Note 1) equal quarterly installments
(Note 2)

Sumitomo Mitsui JPY 100,00008.31.2009 ~ 08.31.2012 14,907 27,283
Banking Corporation (Note 1) equal quarterly installments
Sumitomo Mitsui JPY 100,00009.01.2010 ~ 08.30.2013
Banking Corporation (Note 1) equal quarterly installments 24,357
39,264 40,673
Less: Current portion (_23.411) (__23,200)
$ 15,853 § 17,473

Note 1: In thousands of yen.
Note 2: The principal was repaid in April 2011.

(15)Income tax
A) Income tax payable and income tax expense foritamsnth periods ended June
30, 2011 and 2010 are reconciled as follows:
For the six-month periods ended June 30,

2011 2010
Current year income tax expense $ 85,569  § 79,625
Effect of changes in deferred tax asset
resulting from the change in tax rate - 4,352
Additional 10% corporate income tax on
undistributed earnings 2,330 8,027
87,899 92,004
Add (Less): Net change in deferred income
tax assets ( 22,207) ( 53,289)
Prepaid income tax ( 484) ( 1)
Under provision of prior year's
income tax ( 5,760) ( 4,485)
Income tax payable of prior year - 11,762
Withholding tax by the foreign
government - 1,673)
Effect of exchange rate 270 88
Income tax payable $ 59,718  $ 44,336
Income tax refundable recognized as
“other receivables” ($ 383) $ -
Income tax payab 59,551 44,336
$ 59,168 $ 44,336




B) Deferred income tax assets are as follows:

June 30,
2011 2010
Deferred income tax assets — current  $ 14,717 $ 35,253
Deferred income tax assets — non-current 237,241 226,664
Deferred income tax liabilities
— non-current ( 1,892) -
250,066 261,917
Less: Valuation allowance — current ( 13,034) ( 942)
Valuation allowance — non-current( 210,095) ( 206,503)
$ 26,937 $ 54,472
C) The temporary differences and related income tiecesf are as follows:
June 30,
2011 2010
Amount Taxeffec _Amount Tax effec
Current item — asset:
Allowance for decline in market
value and invento obsolescenc § 6,167 § 1,048 § 11,445 $§ 1,946
Allowance for sales retur 4,777 812 5,684 966
Loss carryforwards 72,703 12,360 - -
Other: 33 6 - -
Investment tax credi 491 32,341
14,717 35,253
Less: Valuation allowan (__13,034) ( 942)
$ 1.683 $ 34.311
Non-current item — asset:
Investment loss on financial assets
carried at co'— nor-curren $ 9,851 $§ 1,675 $ 9,851 $ 1,675
Loss carryforwarc 789,771 134,261 694,799 118,117
Loss on foreign investments 161,390 27,436 109,834 18,672
Reseve for foreign investmer ( 17,915 ¢ 3,046) ( 31,529) ( 5,360)
Depreciation allowances in exc
of related depreciation - ( 15,783) ( 2,604)
Other: 528 90 38 6
Investment tax credi 76,825 96,158
237,241 226,664
Less: Valuation allowance (__210,095) (__206,503)
$ 27,146 $ 20,161
Non-current items Habilities:
Depreciation allowances in exct
of related depreciation ($ 11,465) (§_ 1.892) -y -



D) As of June 30, 2011 and 2010, the balance of sbhltefs account of deductible tax
was as follows:

June 30,
2011 2010
a. Balance of shareholders account of
deductible tax $ 39,749 $ 25.367
2010 Budgeted 2009 (Actual)
b. Creditable tax ratio 9.96% 6.49%
E)Undistributed retained earnings:
June 30,
2011 2010
On or after January 1, 1998
a. Earnings not subjected to 10%
income tax $ 166,389  $ 160,337
b. Earnings subjected to 10%
income tax 35,318 164,905

$ 201,707 $ 325,242
F) The Company’s assessed and approved income tarseite as follows:

a)As of June 30, 2011, the Comparyincome tax returns through 2008 have
been assessed and approved by the Tax Authority.

b)The Tax Authority imposed additional tax amougtito $23,481 on the
Company’s 2002 income tax return after the re-eration. The Company
filed a petition in January 2011, which is stilingéng as of the report date.

c)The Tax Authority imposed additional tax amougtito $3,958 on the
Company’s 2003 income tax return after the re-eration. The Company
filed a petition in November 2010. In June 201k Tax Authority lowered
the additional tax after the re-examination. ThemPany has not filed a
petition as of the report date.

G) As of June 30, 2011, according to the “Statute Upgrading Industries”, the
Company’s domestic subsidiaries had investmentctaxlits in the amount of

$77,316 to offset against taxable income for thet few years. The details are
as follows:

Year of
Deductible item Total Credit: Unused balant expiration
Research and development
expenditures $ 76,913 $ 76,913 2011~2013
Machinery and equipment 403 403 2011~2013
$ 77,316 $ 77,316




H) As of June 30, 2011, in accordance with the “Incdrag Law”, the Compariys

domestic subsidiaries had loss carryforwards inateunt of $146,621 to offset
against taxable income for the next few years. détails are as follows:

Year of
Deductible item Amount reported Total credits Unused balance _expiration
Loss carryforwards$ 901,561 $ 146,621 $ 146,621 2014~2020

(16) Accrued pension liability

A)

B)

C)

The Company and its domestic subsidiaries havenacontributory and funded
defined benefit pension plan in accordance with Lador Standards Law,
covering all regular employees before the implemgm of the Labor Pension
Act on July 1, 2005. Under the defined benefinplavo units are accrued for
each year of service for the first 15 years and amé for each additional year
thereafter with a maximum of 45 units. Retirembehefits are based on the
number of units accrued and the average monthdyisaland wages of the last six
months prior to retirement. The Company and itanestic subsidiaries
contribute monthly an amount equal to 2% of the leyrges’ monthly salaries and
wages to the retirement fund deposited with Bankaivan under the name of the
independent retirement fund committee. The balaoicéhe retirement fund
deposited with Bank of Taiwan was $48,491 and $3BlA&s of June 30, 2011 and
2010, respectively. For the six-month periods entlene 30, 2011 and 2010, net
pension costs recognized by the Company and itesdtiensubsidiaries under the
defined benefit plan amounted to $1,362 and $1,0ddpectively. The fund
balances are not reflected in the consolidated néiimh statements. The
accumulated contributions exceeded the net pemsists in the amount of $8,824
and $7,864 as of June 30, 2011 and 2010, resplctivieich was accounted for in
other assets — other.

Gamania Digital Entertainment (Japan) Co., Ltd.m@aia Korea Co., Ltd.,
Gamania Digital Entertainment (H.K.) Co., Ltd. dficedog Studio Company Ltd.
provide pension reserves annually for their empgyi@ accordance with the local
regulations. The net pension costs were $2,401$%nd70 for the six-month
periods ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Gamania Digital Entertainment (Beijing) Co., Ltdopides an old-age pension
and insurance monthly based on 20~22% of the erapBiysalaries and wages in
accordance with the local regulations. The netsjpgnand insurance cost was
$3,886 and $2,510 for the six-month periods endatk J30, 2011 and 2010,
respectively.

D) Effective July 1, 2005, the Company and its dongestibsidiaries, adopted a

defined contribution pension plan (the “New Plan”)under the New Plan,



employees have the option to choose the New Plahe Company and its
domestic subsidiaries contribute monthly an amobated on 6% of the
employees’ monthly salaries and wages to the emplgyindividual pension
accounts deposited with the Bureau of Labor Inszgan Benefits accrued under
the New Plan are portable when the employees I#a@ecompany. The net
pension costs recognized by the Company and itesdtiensubsidiaries under the
defined contribution plan for the six-month periedwled June 30, 2011 and 2010
amounted to $19,270 and $16,212, respectively.

E) Gamania Holdings Ltd., Gamania Asia Investment @td,, Gamania Digital
Entertainment Labuan Holdings, Ltd., Gamania Irdéomal Holdings Ltd.,
Gamania China Holdings Ltd., Gamania Western Hglslihtd.,, Gamania Sino
Holdings Ltd., Gamania Netherlands Holdings Coofpefrd).A., Gamania Digital
Entertainment (U.S.) Co., Ltd., Gamania Digital étdinment (Europe) B.V.,
Gash Plus (Hong Kong) Company Limited and Gama Gabwe, Ltd. do not have
an employee retirement plan.

(17) Capital reserve
Share premiums from the issuance of new sharesdandtions may be used to
increase capital stock if the Company has surplugtained earnings. The amount
that can be transferred to capital stock each igeamited to 10% of this balance.
Other capital reserves can only be used to coweratttumulated deficit when the
legal reserve is insufficient to cover the accurradaleficit.

(18) Legal reserve

Pursuant to the R.O.C. Company Law, 10% of the alnafer-tax net income of the
Company, after covering accumulated losses, mustppeopriated as legal reserve
until its total amount equals the issued capi@atist Legal reserve can only be used
to cover accumulated losses or to increase capitagal reserve can be used to
increase capital only if the accumulated amouregél reserve is more than 50% of
paid-in capital, and the amount is limited to 50t®balance.

(19) Retained earnings
A) As stipulated in the Company’s Articles of Inporation, the current earnings, if
any, shall be distributed in the following order:
a. Paying all taxes and duties.
b. Covering prior years’ accumulated deficit, ifyan
c. After deducting items a and b, 10% of the remgiramount is appropriated as
legal reserve.
d. In addition to the amount appropriated for legederve, the Company may
appropriate an amount equal to the negative iteanthe stockholders’ equity
from retained earnings as special reserve.




B)

C)

e. Interest on capital.

f. After deducting items a to e, 10%15% of the remaining earnings is
appropriated as employees’ bonuses and up to 28nasneration to directors
and supervisors.

g. The remaining amount is to be distributed telgbolders in accordance with the
resolution adopted at the stockholders’ meeting.

The Taiwan imputation tax system requires thmt @ndistributed current earnings

of a company derived on or after January 1, 199&uligect to an additional

corporate income tax if the earnings are not distad in next year’s shareholders’
meeting. This 10% additional tax on undistribuéadnings paid by the company
may be used as tax credit by shareholders, inauftireign shareholders, against
the withholding tax on dividends. In addition, tdemestic shareholders can
claim a proportionate share in the company’s ca@gomcome tax as tax credit

against its individual income tax liability effeeti 1998.

The appropriation of 2010 and 2009 earnings lteeh approved at the Board of

Directors’ meeting on June 17, 2011 and June 90 2@Fkpectively. Details are

summarized below:

2010 Earnings 2009 Earnings
Dividend per Divided per
Amount share (in dollars) _Amount share (in dollars)
Legal reserve $ 23,260 $ 30,919
Cash dividends 186,035  $ 1.20 197,999 $ 1.30
Employee cash Note 1 Note 2

bonus
Directors’ and supervisors’
remuneration
Note 1: The amounts approved during the stockhsldeeeting for employeedhonus ani
directors’ and supervisors’ remuneration are $3820d $5,040, respectively.
Note 2: The amounts approved during the stockhsldeeeting for employeedhonus ani
directors’ and supervisors’ remuneration are $40 Add $5,565, respectively.

(a) The amount approved during the stockholdersttmg for the distribution of
2010 earnings for cash dividends was the same tiwehamount approved by
the Company’s Board of Directors on April 22, 2011As employee stock
options were converted to common stock, the nunobeshares outstanding
changed during the year. Accordingly, the appedmmn of dividend per share
had been adjusted to $1.19896483 during the boadirectors’ meeting on
July 7, 2011.

(b) The amount approved during the stockholderséting for the distribution of
2009 earnings for cash dividends was the same tiwehamount approved by
the Company’s Board of Directors on March 17, 2010.

” ”



D) The estimated amounts for employees’ bonuse$26908 and $25,109, and the
estimated amounts for directors’ and supervisoeshuneration are $3,454 and
$3,348 for the six-month periods ended June 301 281d 2010, respectively.
The above amounts constitute 10%~15% and 2%, resplgc of net income after
taking into account the legal reserve, and aregmzed as operating cost and
expense. If the actual distribution amounts aréemdint from the estimated
amounts, the difference will be adjusted in theome statement of the following
year.

E) The distribution of employees’ bonus and diregtand supervisors’ remuneration
in 2010, as mentioned in C) above, was differeomfithe employees’ bonus of
$41,401 and directors’ and supervisors’ remunenabin$5,520 recognized in the
2010 financial statements. The difference of $B8,20d $480, respectively, had
been adjusted in the consolidated income statefoettie six-month period ended
June 30, 2011. The distribution of the employd®sius and the directors’ and
supervisors’ remuneration in 2009, as mentione@)irabove, was different from
the employees’ bonus of $42,596 and directors’ supkrvisors’ remuneration of
$5,679 recognized in the 2009 financial statemeni$e difference of $856 and
$114, respectively, had been adjusted in the cafaet income statement for the
six-month period ended June 30, 2010.

F) For current status of the resolution, pleasi the Taiwan Stock Exchange website.

(20) Earningger share

For the six-month period eshdene 30, 2011

Amount Weighted average Earnings per share (Note 1)
number of outstanding
Before After common shares Before After

income tax income tax _ (In thousands of shares)income tax income tax

Basic earnings

per share:
Net income $ 254,288 $ 166,389 154,520 § 1.65 $ 1.08
Dilutive effect:
Stock options - - 2,475
Employees’
bonuses - - 579

Diluted earnings
per share:
Net income $ 254,288 $ 166,389 157,574  § 1.61 § 1.06




For the six-month period eshdane 30, 2010

Amount Weighted average Earnings per share (Note 1)
number of outstanding
Before After common shares Before After
income tax income tax  (In thousands of shares) income tax __income tax
Basic earnings
per share:
Net income $ 252,341 $ 160,337 152,004 § 1.66 § 1.05
Dilutive effect:
Stock options - - 4,256
Employees’
bonuses - - 475
Diluted earnings
per share:
Net income $ 252,341 § 160,337 156,735 $ 1.61 § 1.02

Note 1: In New Taiwan Dollars.

Effective January 1, 2008, as employees’ bonusdcta distributed in the form of stock, the dilutB&S
computation shall include the estimated shareswoaid increase from employees’ stock bonus issuamtike
computation of the weighted-average number of comstwres outstanding during the reporting pertading
into account the dilutive effects of stock bonus motential common shares; whereas, basic EPS she
calculated based on the weighted-average numbeynofon shares outstanding during the reporting gehat
include the shares of employees’ stock bonus ®hpropriation of prior year earnings, whitdve already bee¢
resolved at the stockholders’ meeting held in #orting period Since capitalization of employees’ bonus
longer belongs to distribution of stock dividentlse calculation of basic EPS and diluted EPS fbipafiods
presented shall not be adjusted retroactively.

(21) Treasury stock
Changes in the treasury stock for the six-monthogerended June 30, 2011 and

2010 are set forth below (in thousands of shares):

A) For the six-month period ended June 30, 2011
Purpose Beginning Additions Disposals Ending
Employee stock options 13,099 - (11,840) 1,259

For the six-month period ended June 30, 2010

Purpose Beginning Additions Disposals Ending
Employee stock options 13,099 - - 13,099

B) The maximum and ending balances of treasurykstocthe six-month periods
ended June 30, 2011 and 2010 are as follows:

June 30, 2011 June 30, 2010
Maximum balance _Ending balance Maximum balance _Ending balance
$ 370,182 $ 35,580 $ 370,182 $ 370,182




C) According to the R.O.C Securities and Exchange A, percentage of the
number of shares of treasury stocks shall not ekd®86 of the total shares of
common stocks issued by the Company and the tatauat of treasury stock
shall not exceed the total amount of retained egsjipaid-in capital in excess of
par value, and realized capital reserve.

D) According to the R.O.C. Securities and Exchange theasury stocks held by the
Company shall not be pledged, and shall bear niat i shareholders until
reissued.

E) According to the R.O.C. Securities and Exchange, &etasury shares for the
purpose of enhancing the Company’s creditworthireess shareholders’ equity
not reissued within six months shall be retiredjlevtreasury stocks for all other
purposes shall be reissued within three years fremmonth of acquisition. After
the approval of the board of directors’ meetingApril 22, 2011, the treasury
stocks which were not reissued within three yeaymfthe month of acquisition
have been retired totaling 11,840 thousand sharEke retirement resulted in the
decrease in capital of $118,400. The rate of ahp@duction was 7.04%, and
the effective date was April 23, 2011.

(22) Employee stock option plan

A) On December 25, 2003 and November 14, 2007btiaed of directors approved
the employee stock option plans which provide fug issuance of 10,000,000
units and 12,000,000 units of options, respectiviiigt can be converted to one
share of common stock per unit. When the conteitbutapital changes as a
result of the issuance of new shares of commorkstbe option price will be
adjusted based on a predetermined formula. The p@oyn has issued the
employee stock options on February 10, 2004 ancember 17, 2007. The
stock option has an exercise period of six yeaEnployees will be able to
exercise these options after two years in accoelavith the procedures of the
employee stock option plan.




B) The units and weighted average exercise pricth@fstock options for the six-
month periods ended June 30, 2011 and 2010 wdod@ss:

For the sirronth periods ended June 30,

2011 2010
Weightedaverage Weighted-average
Units exercise price Units exercise price
Stock Options (in thousands)  (in dollars) (Note)__ (in thousands)  (in dollars) (Note)

Beginning balance 7,249 § 24.20 12,663 $ 25.33

Number of options granted - - - -
Adjustment due to issuance

of stock dividends - - - -

Exercised ( 1,921) - ( 3,899) -

Cancelled ( 67) - ( 791) -

Ending balance 5,261 24.20 7,973 24.20
Exercisable at the end of the

period 5,261 2,844

Authorized but unissued at the ¢
of the period -
Note 1: The exercise price has been adjusted mrdance with the terms of the plan.
Note 2: As of June 30, 2011, 113 thousand shamaibbeen registered and were accounted for tstdek
subscriptions received in advance.
Note 3: As of June 30, 2010, all shares had begistezed.

C) As of June 30, 2011 and 2010, the details oftanting stock options are as

follows:
For the six-month period ended Juhe2811
Outstanding stock options Exercisable stock options
Weighted-average Weighted-average
Exercise price Units Weighted-average exercise price Units exercise price
(in dollars) (in thousands) _remaining life (year) (in dollars)  (in thousands) (in dollars)
$ 24.20 5,261 2,42 $ 24.20 5,261 $ 24.20
For the six-month period ended Juhe?B810
Outstanding stock options Exercisable stock options
Weighted-average Weighted-average
Exercise price Units Weighted-average exercise price Units exercise price
(in dollars) (in thousands) _remaining life (year) (in dollars)  (in thousands) (in dollars)
$ 24.20 7,973 3.42 % 24.20 2,844 § 24.20



D) The pro-forma information as if the “fair-valueethod” has been adopted is as
follows:
(a) Model: The Black-Scholes model

(b) Assumptions:
For the six-month period ended June 30, 2010
Black-Scholes model assumptions

Dividend yield 0%
Volatility (Note 1) 43.58%
Risk-free interest rate 2.65%
Expected life of the option 4.3 years

Exercise price (Note 2) $
Amortization period

24.2 (in dollars)

2~3 years

Note 1: The Company started trading in OTC on May 2002, so it adopted the stock prices
from May 21, 2002 to February 10, 2004 (the datgoap were given). Also, the
stock prices mentioned above considered the affezarnings distribution every year.

Note 2: Exercise price of the stock options nwed above considered the effect of earnings
distribution and was readjusted to $24.2.

(c) Result of evaluation:
For the six-month period
ended June 30, 2010
Black-Scholes model assumptions

Weighted average fair value of options granted to  $ 10.95

employees (in dollars)
Compensation cost under “fair value method” $ 6,418
There is no compensation cost for the mignth period ended June 30, 2011 under the faire
method.

(23) Personnel, depreciation and amortization espe

For the six-month period ended June 30, 2011

Operating costs Operating expenses Total
Personnel expenses
Salaries $ 69,182 §$ 538,214 $ 607,396
Labor and health insurance 5,818 41,029 46,847
Pension 2,069 24,850 26,919
Others 1,271 37,262 38,533
$ 78,340 §$ 641,355 $§ 719,695
Depreciation $ 41,467 §$ 39,603 $§ 81,070
Amortization $ 107,779 § 54,540 $ 162,319




For the six-month period ended June 30, 2010

Operating costs Operating expenses Total
Personnel expenses
Salaries $ 43,087 $ 466,813  $ 509,900
Labor and health insurance 3,049 33,848 36,897
Pension 939 20,597 21,536
Others 589 28,305 28,894
$ 47,664 § 549,563  $§ 597,227
Depreciation $ 29,029 § 30,400 $ 59,429
Amortization $ 123,900 $ 30,679 § 154,579

5. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(1) Names and relationship of related parties

Names of related parties Relationship with the Company
Nexon Corporation (Nexon) Note
Taiwan e-sports Co., Ltd. Investee company accounted for under the equity
Gamania Cheer Up Foundation Same chairman

Note: Nexon held more than 20% of the Company'singotshares which were
accounted for under the equity method since Ma@hl2 As Nexon has the
ability to exercise significant influence on themany’s operational decisions
and thus considered as the Company’s related phmtyrelevant transaction
information between the Company and Nexon areased from then on.

(2) Significant transactions and balances withteglgarties

A) License fees
For the six-month periods ended June 30,
2011 2010
% of % of
Amount license fees Amount license fees
Nexon $ 319,933 22 3 - -

The above represents payments for license feegeas af the related party’s on-
line game. The license fees are negotiated basedferent factors.

B) Donation
For the six-month periods ended June 30
2011 2010
% of % of
Amount donation Amount donation
Gamania Cheer
Up Foundation $ 5,000 81 § 3,000 46




C) Deferred charges

March 31, 2011

March 31, 2010

% of net

% of net

Amount deferred charges Amount deferred charges

Nexon $ 81,985 19§

The above represents payment for on-line gamessietees.

D) Accounts payable
March 31, 2011

March 31, 2010

% of net % of net
Amount _accounts payable Amount accounts payable
Nexon $ 70,391 14 §
6. DETAILS OF PLEDGED OR RESTRICTED ASSETS
June 30,
Assets 2011 2010 Purpose
Land $ - $ 117,270 Short-term and longerm loan:
/ Credit loans
Buildings Short-term and long-term loans
118,361 /Creditlines
$ - $ 235,631

7. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

In addition to Note 4(15), others are as follows:

A) As of June 30, 2011, the total future rental payséor the next 3 years under non-
cancelable operating lease agreements for the lefaiee Group’s office building,
transportation equipment and networking device $i81,790.

B) The Company contracted the use of cable lines,ntlT&, with rental charges based
on utilization. In addition, the Company contracteith several on-line game

vendors and will pay royalty based on actual usage.

8. MAJOR CATASTROPHE
None.

9. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
None.




10.0THERS

(1) Fair values of the financial instruments
June 30, 2011

June 30, 2010

Fair value
Quotation
in an active Estimated
market value

Book
value

Book
value

Fair value
Quotation
in an active Estimated
market value

Financial instruments
Non-derivative
financial instruments
Assets
Financial assets with
fair values equal to
book values
Financial assets at fair
value through profit
or loss
Financial assets carried
at cost
Refundable deposits
Liabilities
Financial liabilities
with fair values
equal to book values $1,478,051
Financial liabilities at
fair value through
profit or loss
Long-term loans
Guarantee deposits

2,850 - 2,850
114,294 - -
54,194 - 54,194

3,426 - 3,426
15,853 - 15,578
6 - 6

$3,227,985 (Note 1) §$ 3,227,985 $2,927,903

2,850

114,294
48,254

(Note 1) § 1,478,051 $1,410,814

2,805
17,473

6

(Note 1)  $2,927,903
- 2,850

- 48,254

(Note 1)  $1,410,814

- 2,805
- 16,651
- 6

The methods and assumptions used to estimate thevdmes of the financial

instruments are summarized below:

A) For short-term instruments, the book value is appmate to the fair value

because of their short-term maturities.

notes and accounts receivable, other

This asplo cash and cash equivalents,
receivableslu@ing

income tax

refundable), short-term loans, notes and accowayalpe, accrued expenses, other
payables, current portion of long-term liabilitieasd other current liabilities.

B)

Designated as financial assets at fair value thrqugfit or loss are regarded as

quoted in an active market if quoted prices ardilgand regularly available from
an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, myiservice or regulatory agency,
and those prices represent actual and regulariyrong market transactions on an

arm’s length basis.

If the market for a finananstrument is not active, an entity

establishes fair value by using a valuation teadmsig Valuation techniques



include using recent arm’s length market transastibetween knowledgeable,
willing parties, if available, reference to the mamt fair value of another
instrument that is substantially the same, discadicash flow analysis and option
pricing models.

C) The fair value of long-term loans is based on tresgnt value of expected cash
flow amount. The discount rate was another insémimwhich the Company
could acquire similar terms at about 1.775% ~ 2228 of June 30, 2011.

D) The fair values of refundable deposits and guaeadeposits are the book value
since the amounts are insignificant.

E) Off-balance sheet financial instruments with credit:

June 30,
2011 2010
Guarantee for loans of subsidiaries $ 490,523 $ 339,788

According to the Company’s credit policy, guarastean be provided for the
loans borrowed by the subsidiaries in which the Gamy directly or indirectly
holds more than 50% voting rights and over whice @ompany can exercise
controlling power. No collaterals have been reqea$tom these subsidiaries as
the Company is able to monitor its credit standin§hould these subsidiaries
default, the losses that would be incurred by tlem@any approximate the
amount of the guarantee provided by the Company.

F) As of June 30, 2011 and 2010, the fair values effthancial instruments with
interest rate risk were $409,645 and $374,950 ectely.

(2) Procedure of financial risk control and hedge

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety afaincial risks, including market risk,
credit risk, liquidity risk and cash flow interasite risk.

The Group’s overall risk management focuses onuiredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimize potential adverseceffon the Group’s financial
performance.

The Group’s risk management program considersfteetef economic environment,
competition and market value risk. The Group atdd the best risk position, holds
appropriate liquidity position and centers on mamagnt of all the market risks.

To reach the objective of risk management, the @sohedged activities are focused
on the market value risk and the cash flow risk.

(3) Information of financial risk
A) Einancial instruments of equity: Financial assedrried at cost- non-current

(A) Market risk
Investments in equity-type financial instrumentg affected by changes in




market prices. However, the Group can monitor madkiven changes and

establish stop-loss points when appropriate, swipated market risk is not
significant.

(B) Credit risk

The Group has evaluated credit standing of the teoparties and does not

expect any non-fulfilment of the terms of the qait, so the chance of credit
risk is low.

(C) Liquidity risk

There is no active market for equity financial mastents of the Group, so the
Group expects to have liquidity risk.

(D) Cash flow interest rate risk

As the Group has no significant interest-bearingetss cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in marketesteates.

B) ReceivablesNotes and accounts receivable and other recewable
(A) Market risk

The Group’s receivables are due within one yearthgoGroup expects no
significant market risk.

(B) Credit risk

The debtors of the Group have good credit standinghe Group expects no
significant credit risk.

(C) Liquidity risk

The Group’s receivables are due within one yearthgoGroup expects no
significant liquidity risk.

(D) Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group’s receivables are due within one yearthgeoGroup expects no
significant cash flow interest risk.

C) Loans Short-term loans, short-term notes and bills pkyamnd long-term loans
(including current portion of long-term loans)
(A) Market risk

As the interest rate of the loans for working calpi$ fixed, the Group expects
no significant market risk.

(B) Credit risk
None.
(C) Liquidity risk

The working capital of the Group is sufficient tover the loans, so it expects
no significant liquidity risk.



(D) Cash flow interest risk
Fixed and floating interests for loans are adofmgthe Group. There will be
no cash flow interest risk for loans with fixed ergst, but for loans with
floating interest, effective interest will vary Wwifluctuations in market interest
and it will change future cash flows.

D) Some transactions of the Company and its domestbsidiaries involve non-
functional currency, resulting in foreign currerdgnominated assets and liabilities
which are affected by exchange rate fluctuation3he significant foreign
currency denominated assets and liabilities of @wmnmpany and its domestic
subsidiaries as of June 30, 2011 and 2010 are stiretdoelow:

June 30, 2011 June 30, 2010

Foreign Currency Exchange  Foreign Currency Exchange

Amount (Note) Rate Amount (Note) Rate

Financial Assets

USD : TWD USD 2,531,290 28.8020 USD 258,877 32.2090
HKD : TWD HKD 1,470,441 3.7008 HKD 2,627,903 4.1365
RMB : TWD RMB 2,045,007 4.4558 RMB 1,406,226 4.7114
Financial Liabilities

USD : TWD USD 4,045,895 28.8020 USD 3,019,048  32.2090
HKD : TWD HKD 259,276 3.7008 HKD 523,241 4.1365

Note: Foreign currency amount is expressed in dolla

(4) For the six-month periods ended June 30, 201l 2010, the Group donated cash
amounting to $6,200 and $6,500, respectively, tariths, and educational
institutions that are accredited by the governmewithout significant appointed
considerations.



11. DISCLOSURE INFORMATION

(1) Related information of significant transactions

A) Financing activities to any company or person: None

B) Guarantee for any other company or person:

Unit: Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars / ThousandStmares

The Company or . . Limit of Maximum : )
investee companies Parties being guaranteed outstanding Outstandin Amount of acispnoul(gte q Maximum
. — guarantee for guarantee amount 9 guarantee with amount availabl
Relationship with . guarantee amour guarantee amount ¢
h for the six-month collateral or guarantee
Number| o Name the Company each party . at June 30, 2011 to net value of the
(Note 1) period ended placed Company (Note 3)
(Note 2) (Note 4) June 30, 2011
0 |The Companysash Plus 2 468,865 $ 80,000 $ 80,000 None 2.97% $ 1,562,883
Company Ltd. (30% of the Company’
capital
0 |The Companyameastor Digital 2 468,865 330,000 $ 290,000 None 10.78% $ 1,562,883
Entertai Co.
Ltr(]j eranment-o., (30% of the Company|
' capital
0 The Companysamania Digital 3 468,865 66,000 $ 66,000 None 2.45% $ 1,562,883
I(EJr:s;tr?;nCn;entt d (30% of the Company|
R capital
0 The Companysamania Digital 3 468,865 59,010 $ 54,523 None 2.03% $ 1,562,883
Entertainment
(Beijing) Co., Ltd. (30% of the Company|
' capital

Note 1: Number O represents the Company.

Note 2: Number 2 means the Company directly owres 60% of the shares of the subsidiary.

Number 3 means the Company and the subsidiary een59% of the shares of the investee company.

Note 3: In accordance with the Company’s police, tibtal guarantee amount of the Company shall xxeexl 30% of the Company’s capital.

Note 4: The Company provides guarantee for theidiabies in which the Company directly or indirgctiolds more than 50% voting rights.

30% of the Company’s capital, and the maximum arhauailable for guarantee is the Company’s capital.

The limitgpfarantee for each party is




C) Marketable securities held at June 30, 2011

Unit: Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars / ThousandStmares

June 30, 2011
Type of marketable securitips Name of marketable |Relationship of the issuers with { Number of] Market value
Company (Note 1) securities security holders General ledger account shares Book value| Percentage (Note 2) Note
The Company Common Stock Gamania Holdings Ltd. Subsidiary Learga investment 26,320 | $ 719,634 100%| $ 719,634 | Note 3

7 7 Gamania Korea Co., Ltd. 7 7 416 16,600 100% 16,600 7

” » Fantasy Fish Digital Games ” ” 10,174 22.753 99.75% 20.862 ”
Co., Ltd.

’ ’ Gameastor Digital ’ ’ 3,863 63,207 | 72.08%| 63,996 | ”
Entertainment Co., Ltd.

P » Gamania Asia Investment ” ” 13,945 141,554 100% 141,554 ”
Co., Ltd.

Gamania Digital

” ” Entertainment Labuan " " 10 | 147) 100% | ( 147) ”
Holdings, Ltd.

’ ’ Fundation Digital ’ ’ 6,448 13,888 100%| 13,888 | 7
Entertainment Co., Ltd.

i i Playcoo Co. i i 13,996 107,990 75.25% 61,862 7

” ” Redgate Games Co., Ltd. " " 12,200 9,978 100% 9,978 ”

” ” Seedo Games Co., Ltd. ” 7 12,200 16,952 100% 16,952 "

¢ ” Two Tigers Co., Ltd. ! Y 627 6,105 51% 6,105 |

¢ ” Gash Plus Company Ltd. ! ! 5,000 55,307 100% 55,307 | 7

7 7 Taiwan e-sports Co., Ltd. Investee company accounted fpr 7 3,200 5,076 37.65% 5,076 | N/A

under the equity method
Investee company accounted fpr Financial assets carried at
” 7 NC Taiwan Co., Ltd. under financial assets carried at 2,100 22,841 15% 22,841 ”
cost cost-non current

Note 1: Marketable securities consist of stocksdso beneficiary certificates and other derivainstruments.

Note 2: The market value of listed equity secwsii@d closed-end mutual funds is determined basetbeing price and net asset value of funds, @iy, at the balance sheet date.
The market value of open-end mutual funds is datexd based on the net asset par value at thedeatdueet date.

Note 3: The investment has been eliminated in tmsalidated financial statements.



Marketable securities acquired or sold durtmg six-month period ended June 30, 2011 in exdeb$a®,000 or 20% of capital:

D)
Unit: Thomsts of New Taiwan Dolks / Thousands of Shat
Type and Beginning balanceNote 1) Addition Disposal Ending balance (Note 2)
name of Name and
marketable | General ledger relationship of | Number of Number of Number of Disposal | Number of
Investor securities account counterparty shares Amount shares Amount shares Amount| Cost gain shares Amount
Financial asse
itial i E 115,000
The Company 1< B | heiq for trading| ™2 "vestment - | sa0a | F 8,104 | $115,044 |$115,000 $ 44 .
Fund inception/ none (Note 1)
bond funds
” Jih Sun ” ” 129,000
- 10,182 10,182 129,071 | 129,000 71 -
Bond Fund (Note 1)
Long-term | Gamania Holdings
Gamania investments Ltd./ Investee
” . 657,580 - - - - 26,320 719,634
Holdings accounted for |company accountqg 22,650 (Note 1) 3,670 62,054 (Note 3)
Ltd. under the equityfor under the equit (Note 2)
method method

Note 1: Amount of initial investment at inception.
Note 2: The Company invested $107,072 and recodriizestment loss, cumulative translation adjustsand effect of change in ownership percentageveStee company. The net increase amount was

$62,054.
Note 3: The investment has been eliminated in timsalidated financial statements

E) Acquisition of real estate in excess of $100,6020% of capital: None.

F) Disposal of real estate in excess of $100,0(D&6 of capital: None.



G) Sales to or purchases from related partiegéess of $100,000 or 20% of capital:

Name of transaction
parties

Purchaser

/Seller Relationshi

Transaction terms

Description of and reason$

for difference in transaction
terms compared to non-
related party transactions

Accounts or notes receivable (payable

Percentage of

Percentage of total accoun

ts

Purchases Amount total purchases| Credit Unit price Credit Balance or notes receivable
( Sales) (sales) terms period (payable)
Gamania Digital Gash Plus Co., Ltd. Subsidiary Sales $ 613,161 27% Note 1 Note 1 Note 1 $ 486,167 50%
Entertainment (Note 2)

Co., Ltd.

Note 1: The above represents sales condition baseaerchandise, competitive market and tradinggan.

Note 2: The investment has been eliminated in tmsalidated financial statements.

H) Receivable from related parties in excess @0$100 or 20% of capital: None.

The price and collection terms are sintitethird parties.

Balance of receivable

Overdue receivables

Name of Transaction parties| Relationship| from related parties (in| Turnover rate Amount Action adopted for Allowance for doubtful accounts
creditor thousands) overdue accounts| Subsequent collections provided
Gamania Digital| Gash Plus Co., Ltd, Subsidiary $ 486,167 5.04 $ - - $ - $ -
Entertainment (Note 1)
Co., Ltd.

Note 1: The investment has been eliminated in tmsalidated financial statements.

I)  Information on derivative transaction: None.



(2) Information of investee compan

A) Information of investee companies:

(The information on Taiwan e-sports Co., Ltd. isdxh on unaudited financial statements becauseeddrttall scale.
Studio Company Ltd. and Gamania Digital Entertaint@l.K.) Co., Ltd. were based on financial statateeaudited by other auditors.

Compan’s auditors.

The information on Gamania Koreg Ctl., Firedog
The otheese audited by tr

Unit: Thousands of New Taiw Dollars / Thousands of Sha

Original investment co

Held by the Compatr

Investmen

. . Main _Income (loss) income (loss)
Company Name of investee Location c;;ég\rl?ttigwsg 2011.6.30 2010.6.30 Nusrr?greersof Percentage Book value 'nc?r:{/%gtg%the recognized by the Note
Compan'
P.O. Box 30592 SME
The CompanyGamania cayside, and Floor, | investment [$1,637,103 | $ 1,530,031 26,320 | 100% | $ 719,634 | ($ 42,241) |($  42,241) | Subsidiary
Holdings Ltd. Cayman, Cayman Islanc holdings (Note 1)
British West Indie
T i
, Gamania Korea 3@;;‘]120769?[?&?3?("%5’ Bl Designanc | 567,957 249,615 416 | 100% 16,600 | (13,448 |( 13,448) | &
Co., Ltd. Narmr-Gu, Seoul Kore software
. Design anc
, Fg?éﬁg{gfrﬂes 1%&.'}%;3&?528,2&%&; researchand 43 310,000 10,174 | 99.75% nas [ B C 27 ,
Co., Ltd. Taipei City 235, Taiwan ;Vfo?tevrgﬁn (Note 2)
Gameastor Digital Software 14.898
” Entertainment Co), ’ services and 211,433 211,433 3,863 | 72.08% 63,297 21,050 (Not ’ 3) 7
Ltd. sale: ote
Gamania Asi
” In:j/estment Co., ” '”h"oelg}r’%es”t 190,000 190,000 13,945 | 100% 141,554 5,757 5,757 ”
Ltd.
Gamania Digite [Level 15(A), Main Office
Entertainment | Tower, Financial Park Investment
7 Labuan Labuan, 87000 Labuan, ; 329 329 10 100% ( 147) 1 1 7
Holdings Jalan Merdeka, 87000 holdings
Ltd. Labuan, FT, Malaysie
Fundation Digital|18F, No. 736, Zhongzheng usbellilgﬁir?mof
’ Entertainment | Rd., Zhonghe Dist., New rﬁagazineg an 150,000 120,000 6,448 100% 13,888 | ( 19,194) (( 19,194) 7
Co., Ltd. Taipei City 235, Taiwan periodical
Design anc
” ” research and 152,554 152,554 13,996 | 75.25% 107,990 8,320 2,066 ”
Playcoo Co. development (Note 4)

of softwar

Note 1: The investment has been eliminated in émsalidated financial statements.
Note 2: The weighted-average ownership percens§8.i70%.
Note 3: Including the amount of write-off of re@z and unrealized upstream revenue ($275).
Note 4: Including amortization of subsidiary’s patamounting to ($4,195).



Unit: Thousands of New Taiwaallars / Thousands of Shares

; P Investmen
Main Original investment cost Held by the Company Income (loss ;
Company | Name of investee Location operating NOFBer o incurred g)y th)e reg]c;:or?iqzee((jlobssghn Note
activities 2011.6.30 2010.6.30 share: Percentage Book value investee ompan'y i
Design and -
18F, No. 736, Zhongzheng Subsidiary
The CompanyRedgate Games "o 7 onghe Dist., New €S€r€hande 1) 400 | 82,000 | 12.200 | 100% |$  9.978 [($ 28.982) |($  28.982) (Note 1)
Co., Ltd. Taipei City 235, Taiwan development
' of software
Design and
” Seedo Games Co., ” research ang ”
Ltd. development 122,000 82,000 12,200 100% 16,952 |( 24,870) |[( 24.,870)
of software
” . ” Animation ”
Two Tigers Co. Ltd production 6,269 6,269 627 51% 6,105 |( 140)  |( 140)
Supply of
software
¢ Gash Plu€o., Ltd. ¢ services and 50,000 - 5,000 100% 55,307 5,307 5,307 7
electronic
information
Supply of Investee
. company
. 9F, No.176 Chung Hsiao software
’ Talwan e-Sports | "east Rd. Section 4, Taipeiservices and 32,000 32,000 | 3,200 | 37.65% 5,076 [ 4.433) |( 1,669) | accounted for
Co., Ltd. . . X under equity
City, Taiwan electronic method
information
Investee
Gamania Asia|Gameastor Digital |L8F, No. 736 Chang-Cheng Design and ac%%Tr?taér:jyfor
Investment | Entertainment CoJ, Rd., Chung-Ho City, sales of 80,625 80,625 1,458 | 27.20% 24,149 21,050 5,726 under equit
Co., Ltd. Ltd. Taipei County, Taiwan software methg d y
(Note 1
P.0O. Box 30592 SMB,
. Gamania Cayside, 2nd Floor, USD 49,710 USD 25,141 [(USD 1,443 |[(USD 1,443 Subsidiary
G:g?;rl;las Ltd International Harbour Drive, Grand l%ﬁgm esnt thousand Us?h46’04g 49,710 100% thousand thousand) thousand) (Note 1)
9 ‘| Holdings Ltd. Cayman, Cayman Islands, 9 ousan
British West Indie
Gamania Gamania Sumitomo Ooimachi Bldg D‘;Z'lgrs] gfnd
- Digital (South) 3F, 1-20-10 Town, . | USD 14,298 | USD 14,298 3 100% [USD 7,020 | USD 1,056 USD 1,056 ”
International . . . software;
Holdinas Ltd Entertainment | Ooi, Shinagawa-Ku, sales of thousand thousand thousand thousand thousand
9 ‘I (Japan) Co., Ltd. Tokyo , Japan 140-0014 hardwar

Note 1: The investment has been eliminated in tmsalidated financial statements.



Unit: Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars / ThousandSlmares

Investmen

Main Original investment cost Held by the Company Income goss) . |
Company | Name of investee Location operating 2011.6.30 2010.6.30|Number of 5 EooK val incurred by the reg]cfor?iqzeegobsﬂhe Note
activities .0. .0. shares ercentage Book value Investee ompany
G . P.O. Box 30592 SME
amania . |Gamania china | Gayside 2nd Floor. | egiment | USD 32,284) USD29,784| 32,370 98.50%|USD 9,989| (USD 658 | (USD 648 | Subsidiary
Holdings Ltd. Holdings Ltd. Cayman, Cayman Islands, holdings thousand thousand thousand thousand) thousand) (Note 2)
British West Indies (Note 1)
i ; P.O. Box 2804 Scotia
Gliig?r?; onal G@g‘;gﬁ Centre, 4th, George Towp, Investment | USD  6,150| USD 4,850  6,150| 100% |USD 3,135 USD 829 | USD 829 ,
Holdings Ltd.| Holdings Ltd. ?lr?gfjcca@ymngné;%as holdings thousand thousand thousand thousand thousand
G . Gamanie
|i$?r?£ onal | Nemherlands\prof 3 4 Barincklaan 5, | Investment | EUR  1,500(EUR 500/  1,500|  100% |[EUR 1061|(EUR 352 | (EUR 352 ,
Holdings Ltd. S%pegr]atief 1183AT Amstelveen holdings thousand thousand thousand thousand) thousand)
Unit 509 5/F., Conit ;
i At Design and
Glzrlligfr?;%onal Firedog Studio Wg%%[rﬁ%fgsggglg% resegrch and HKD 18,255 | HKD 10,455 18 255 100% |HKD 14,318 | (HKD 4,326 | (HKD 4,326 ”
Holdings Ltd. Company Ltd. Hunghom, Kowloon, dOGfVSeCI)?tBVn;regt thousand thousand ' thousand thousand) thousand)
Hong Kong
Gamania Gash Pl Ulnit 509 5/F.|,3C_c|)(§1_i< Supply of
ash Plus nvestment Building, software . 0
International &Hong Kong) No.13 Hok Yuen St., services ang HKDh 750d 750 100% US?} 12% USDh 32d USDh 32d 7
Holdings Ltd.| Company Ltd. | Hunghom, Kowloon, “electronic thousan thousan thousan thousan
Hong Kong information

Note 1: The weighted-average ownership percenta§8.44%.
Note 2: The investment has been eliminated in tmsalidated financial statements.




Unit: Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars / ThousandStmares

Main Original investment cost Held by the Company Income (loss) |Investment income
Company Name of investeq Location operating Number o incurred by the |(loss) recognized K Note
activities 2011.6.30 2011.6.30 shares Percentage Book value [investee the Company
Fourth Floor, One Capiti
Gamania ChingGamania Sino g|%%%%g_rﬁgé sé,; n;rén Investment USDth29,'42% USD 26,920 29,420 100% US]t)h 1,88?i (USDth 3,321 (USD " 3,3211 Subsidiary
Holdings Ltd.| Holdings Ltd. | ojand B)rlitish Wes)t/ holdings ousan thousand ousan ousand) ousand) (Note )
Indies
Gamania Fllat 5({1-507t,BE>EidConi<13 Desi q
Gamania China Digital nvestment suilding, esignandipsp 3,009 |USD 3,009 USD 6,851 | USD 3,164 |USD 3,164 ”
Holdings Ltd.| Entertainment nglsn?(ltégcvks)gﬁ'ehonugng, Sgﬁsvsa?é thousand thousand 33,300 100% thousand thousand thousand
(H.K.) Co., Ltd. Kong
Gamania Building B 3F, N0.329
Qi uildin , N0.329, ;
Gamania Sino Eﬁgi'ammem 'I[;i_an 20 Qi?]o_Réj_.,thLi Dessa'l g‘s%r;d USD 25,500 {USD 23,000 N/A 100% [USD 1,831 |(USD 3,218 |(USD 3,218 ”
i ist., Shanghai City,
Holdings Ltd. (Beijing) Co., | Chiaha g y software thousand thousand thousand thousand) thousand)
Ltd.
; Gamania Suite 806, 1220 N. Marke :
Gamania  |pigial Street, Wilmington, DE | DeSignand|ysp 6,130 [usp 4,830 U] ot00s usp 3136 | e O ) ,
Holdings Ltd Entertainment | 19801, County of New software thousand thousand thousand
| (U.S.) Co., Ltd. | Castle
Gamana Ga_m_ania
Netherlands | Digital Naritaweg 165, Telestone| D€SIONand kR 1500 [ELR 500 | 1,500 | 100% [ELR 1,061 |[(ELR 352 |(ER 352 ,
Holdings Entertainment |"15,3 B\~ Amsterdam sales of h d h d h q
Cooperatief | (Europe) Co., ' software ousan ousan thousand ousand) thousand)
U.A. Ltd.
Note : The investment has been eliminated in tmsalidated financial statements.
B) Financing activities to any company or person: None
C) Guarantee information: None.



D) Marketable securities held at June 30, 2011: Unit: Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars / ThousantSlares
. June 30, 2011
i Name o g
Type of marketable securitigs marketable Relationship with| ~General ledger Number of shareg Market value
Issuer (Note 1) securities the security holders account (Note 3) Book value Percentage (Note 2) Note
. ; Long-term
Gamania Gamania ' _
_ Common Stock International Subsidiary invesiments 49,710 USD 25,141 100% | USD 25,141 Note 4
; accounted for under thousand thousand
Holdings Ltd. Holdings Ltd. the equity method
Gamania o
Gamania Digital
International 7 Entertainment 7 ” 3 USDth 0171 Sg%g 100% USDth 0171 Sg%g ”
Holdings Ltd. (Japan) Co., Ltd
Gamania G ia Chi 32,370 S 9,989 98.50% S 9,989
; ” amania China ” ” ,37 USD , .50% | USD , ”
Interr]atlonal Holdings Ltd. thousand thousand
Holdings Ltd.
Gamania Gamania
International ” Western ” ’ 6.130 USDthoﬁé;gg 1008 USDthoiéiflcsl ’
Holdings Ltd. Holdings Ltd.
Gamania Gamania
International ” ”eltg_erlands ” ” 1,500 EUR 1,061 100% | EUR 1,061 ”
oldings th d
Holdings Ltd. Coopegr]atief U.A ousan thousand
Gamania Firedog Studi 18,255 HKD 14,318 100% | HKD 14,318
. ” Ireao tudio ” ” s . 0 .
International Company Lid. thousand thousand | 7
Holdings Ltd.
Gamania
Gash Plus (Hong
International 7 Kong) Company 7 i 750 USD 128 100% | USD 128 i
. Ltd. thousand thousand
Holdings Ltd.
Gamania , Ggf;\ﬂt%?tigir?ri]gétnatl , , 35,500 USD  6.851 100% | USD 6,851 ”
China Holdings Ltd. (H.K.) Co., Ltd. thousand thousand

Note 1: Marketable securities consist of stocksidso beneficiary certificates and other derivatnstruments.

Note 2: The market value of listed equity secusitied closed-end mutual funds is determined basetbsing price and net asset value of funds, tsmdy, at the balance sheet date.
The market value of open-end mutual funds is deterthbased on the net asset par value at the leaddreet date.

Note 3: Unit: In thousand shares.

Note 4: The investment has been eliminated in dmsalidated financial statements.



June 30, 2011

s Name of
Type of marketable securitigs marketable Relationship with| General ledger Number of shareg (L Market value
Issuer (Note 1) securities the security holders account (Note 3) Book value Percentage (Note 2) Note
Gamania China G ia Si i Lontq'te”? 29,420 | USD 1,884 100% | USD 1,884
amania Sino .~ invesiments — , , ,
Holdings Ltd. Common Stock Holdings Ltd. Subsidiary | accounted for under thousand i thousand | NOt€ 4
the equity method
. Gamania Digite
Gamania Sino , allialoiutt , , N/A | USD 1,831 100% | USD 1,831 ,
Holdings Ltd. (Beijing) Co.,Ltd thousand thousand
Gamaria Wes B
amania Vwestern ” gial . ” ” 1] USD 3,136 100% | USD 3,136 ”
Holdings Ltd. E(rbesrt?lg?erﬂttd thousand thousand
Gamania Netherland NG
- , Gamania Digital , , 1,500| EUR 1,061 100% | USD 1,061 ,
Holdings Entertainment thousand thousand
Cooperatief U.A. (Europe) B.V.
: ; Gameastor Digital Investee company
Gamania fsia ” Entertainment | accounted for und ” 1,458 24,149 27.20% 24,149 ”
" Co., Ltd. the equity method
Gamania Asia ” Nice Finance Financial assets
Investment Co., Ltd Co., Ltd. None carried at cost 9,383 91,453 14.60% 91,453 None
: ; Iwan Interactive Financail assets gt
Gamania Asia P - ” d 285 14.96% »
Entertainment fair value through 2,850 2,850
Investment Co., Ltd Co., Ltd. profit or loss

Note 1: Marketable securities consist of stocksidso beeficiary certificates and other derivative instruntse

Note 2: The market value of listed equity secusiied close-end mutual funds is determined based on closiitg ind net asset value of funds, respectivelheabalance sheet date.

The market value of open-end mutual funds is deterthbased on the net asset par value at the leaddreet date.

Note 3: Unit: In thousand shares.

Note4: The investment has been eliminated in the cadesield financial statements.

E) Acquisition of real estate in excess of $100,00Q@% of capital: None.
F) Disposal of real estate in excess of $100,000 &t @bcapital: None.

G) Sales to or purchases from related parties in ex@e$100,000 or 20% of capital: None.
H) Receivable from related parties in excess of $1DdF 20% or capital: None.

1)

Information on derivative transactions: None.




(3) DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ON INVESTMENT IN MAINLANDCHINA

A)
Remitted or received Direct and Investment Accumulated
Accumulated . Accumulated| ~. 7. : .
Name of . . investment amount |. indirect |loss recognized Balance of | investment
. . Main . Investmentinvestment a . . investment & . . .
investee in I Capital during the period percentagé during the | investmentat  income
. .| activities method | of January 1 of June 30, . .
Mainland China 2011 2011 of period June 30, 2011 received as of
Remitted | Received ownership  (Note 2) June 30, 2011
Gamania
Digital Designand (RMEihlo?Jlsjalr?g (USD20,870 |USD 2,500 (USD 23,370 (USD 3,168 |(USD 1,804
Entertainmat| sales of $851.900 Note 2 thousand) thousand $ - thousand) 98. 50% thousand thousand)| $ -
(Beijing) software ' $601,098 | $72,005 $673,103 ($ 91,245) $51,959
Co., Ltd.
Accumulated amount of investment in Mainlaryd Related investment amount approved by FIA Uppeit lifinvestment in Mainland China
China as of June 30, 2011 PP y PP
(USD 23,370 thousand) $673,103 $754,036 (Note 1) 1,681,949

Note 1: Related total investment amount approveBIByis USD 26,180,000 or NTD 754,036 thousand Has® 28.8020 exchange rate.

Note 2: Investment through a holding company regist in a country other than Taiwan or Mainlandn@hi
Note 3: Investment loss recognized in the periathlsulated based on 98.44 percentage of indingnecship using the financial statements of the stee, which were unreviewed.

B) The Company has no significant transactions tighholding company or its subsidiaries in Maidl&hina.

C) The investment has been eliminated in the caoesteld financial statements



(4) The relationship and significant transactioasieen the Company and its subsidiaries

For the six-month period ended June 30, 2011

Transactiemts
Percentage of total
Number Relationship Transaction combined revenue or
(Note 1) Name of counterparty Name of transaction parties (Note 2) Subject Amount terms total assets (Note 3)
0 Gamania Digital Entertainment Gash Plus Co. Ltd. 1 Sales revenue 613.161 Note 4 17%
Co., Ltd.

0 ’ Gameastor Digital 1 Advertising expense 17,895 Note 4 -%
Entertainment Co., Ltd.

0 ! Gash Plus Co. Ltd. 1 Accounts receivable 485,206 Note 4 10%

0 ” Gamania Digital Entertainment 1 Other receivables 36,651 Note 4 1%
(Europe) B.V.

0 7 Gash Plus (Hong Kong) 1 Other receivables 30,453 Note 4 1%
Company Ltd.

0 7 Gash Plus Co. Ltd. 1 Other receivables 26,608 Note 4 1%

0 ” Gamania Digital Entertainment 1 Other receivables 8,636 Note 4 -%
(Beijing) Co., Ltd.

0 ” Gamania Holdings Ltd. 1 Other receivables 5,114 Note 4 -%

0 ” Gamania Digital Entertainment 1 Other receivables 5,068 Note 4 -%
(H.K.) Co., Ltd.

0 ” Playcoo Co. 1 Accounts payable 11,214 Note 4 -%

0 ” Gash Plus (Hong Kong) 1 Accrued expenses 11,636 Note 4 -%
Company Ltd.

0 ” Gash Plus Co. Ltd. 1 Other payables 123,531 Note 4 2%

0 ” Gash Plus (Hong Kong) 1 Other payables 50,085 Note 4 1%
Company Ltd.

0 7 Gameastor Digital 1 Other payables 82,248 Note 4 2%
Entertainment Co., Ltd.

1 Gameastor Digital Entertainment Co., Lthamania Digital Entertainment Labuan 3 License costs 10,020 Note 4 -%
Holding, Ltd.

1 ” Gamania Digital Entertainment Labuan 3 Payments 18,324 Note 4 -%
Holding, Ltd.

1 ” Gash Plus Co. Ltd. 3 Sales revenue 26,296 Note 4 1%

1 7 Gash Plus Co. Ltd. 3 Accounts receivable 27,094 Note 4 1%

2 Gamania Digital Entertainment (H.K.) C&Gash Plus (Hong Kong) 3 Accounts payable 62,677 Note 4 1%

Ltd.

Company Ltd.



Transactiemts

Percentage of total

Number Relationship Transaction combined revenue or
(Note 1) Name of counterparty Name of transaction parties (Note 2) Subject Amount terms total assets (Note 3)
3 Playcoo Co. Gamania Digital Entertainment Labuan 3 License revenue  § 43,020 Note 4 1%
Holdings, Ltd.
3 ” Gamania Digital Entertainment Labuan 3 Accounts receivable 6,668 Note 4 -%
Holdings, Ltd.
4 Gamania Digital Entertainment Labuan Gamania Digital Entertainment (Japan) 3 License revenue 43,022 Note 4 1%
Holdings, Ltd. Co. Ltd.
4 ” Gamani::lj Digital Entertainment (Japan) 3 Accounts receivable 7,434 Note 4 -%
Co. Ltd.

Note 1: The transaction information of the Compang its consolidated subsidiaries should be netediumn “Number”. The number means:
1. Number O represents the Company.
2. The consolidated subsidiariesimder from number 1.
Note 2: The relationships with the transactioniparare as follows:
1. The Company to the consolidatdubiliary.
2. The consolidated subsidiary toGmenpany.
3. The consolidated subsidiary tothenconsolidated subsidiary.
Note 3: Ratios of asset/liability accounts are did by consolidated total assets, and ratios ditfwss accounts are divided by consolidated sedgsnue.

Note 4: There is no similar transaction to compaita.

Note 5: The disclosure standard reaches above G50@he transaction amount.

It will follow the agreed price and transiact terms.



For the six-month period ended June 30, 2010

Transaction terms

Percentage of total

Number Relationship Transaction combined revenue or
_(Note 1) Name of counterparty Name of transaction parties (Note 2) Subject Amount terms total assets (Note 3)
0 Gamania Digital Entertainment Co., Ltd. Fundation Digital Entertainment Co., Ltd. 1 Purchases $ 6,018 Note 4 %
0 i Gameastor Digital Entertainment 1 Purchases 5,092 Note 4 -%
Co., Ltd. (Note 6)
0 7 Gameastor Digital Entertainment 1 Advertising expense 24,054 Note 4 1%
Co., Ltd. (Note 6)
0 ” Gameastor Digital Entertainment 1 Rent revenue 5,412 Note 4 -%
Co., Ltd. (Note 6)
0 7 Gamania Digital Entertainment (H.K.) Co., Ltd. 1 Other receivables 10,649 Note 4 -%
0 ” Gameastor Digital Entertainment 1 Other receivables 7,238 Note 4 -%
Co., Ltd. (Note 6)
0 ” Gamania Digital Entertainment 1 Other receivables 5,711 Note 4 -%
(Beijing) Co., Ltd.
0 7 Gameastor Digital Entertainment 1 Accrued expenses 8,109 Note 4 -%
Co., Ltd. (Note 6)
0 7 Gameastor Digital Entertainment 1 Other payables 97,664 Note 4 2%
Co., Ltd. (Note 6)
1 Gameastor Digital Entertainment Gamania Digital Entertainment Labuan Holdings, 3 License costs 25,343 Note 4 1%
Co., Ltd. (Note 6) Ltd.
1 7 Gamania Digital Entertainment Labuan Holdings, 3 Royalties payments 29,681 Note 4 1%
Ltd.
1 7 Gamania Digital Entertainment Labuan Holdings, 3 Accounts payable 9,962 Note 4 -%
Ltd.
2 Gamania Digital Entertainment (H.K.) Co., Ltd. Gam@aDigital Entertainment (U.S.) Co., Ltd. 3 Other receivables 5,269 Note 4 -%
3 Playcoo Co. Gamania Digital Entertainment Labuan Holdings, 3 License revenue 37,963 Note 4 1%
Ltd.
3 7 Gamania Digital Entertainment Labuan Holdings, 3 Accounts receivable 11,796 Note 4 -%
Ltd.
4 Gamania Digital Entertainment Labuan Holdings, L8amania Digital Entertainment (Japan) Co., Ltd. 3 License revenue 43,795 Note 4 1%
4 i Gamania Digital Entertainment (Japan) Co., Ltd. 3 Accounts receivable 5,698 Note 4 -%

Note 1: The transaction information of the Compangi its consolidated subsidiaries should be notedlumn “Number”. The number means:
1. Number O represents the Company.
2. The consolidated subsidiariesiarorder from number 1.
Note 2: The relationships with the transactioniparare as follows:
1. The Company to the consolidatduosidiary.
2. The consolidated subsidiaryn® €Company.



3. The consolidated subsidiaryriother consolidated subsidiary.
Note 3: Ratios of asset/liability accounts aredid by consolidated total assets, and ratios ditfwes accounts are divided by consolidated sedesnue.
Note 4: There is no similar transaction to compeith. It will follow the agreed price and transact terms.
Note 5: The disclosure standard reaches above G50¢the transaction amount.

Note 6: Gameastor Digital Entertainment Co., Liokmerly Taiwan Index Co., Ltd., has completedchiange of registration in September 2010.



12.OPERATING SEGMENTS INFORMATION
(1) General information

Management has determined the operating segmesesi en the reports reviewed by the chief
operating decision-maker which are used to malegegfic decisions.

(2) Assessment of segment information

The chief operating decision-maker assesses tlierpance of the operating segments based on ne
income or net loss of the reporting period.

(3) Information on segment profit (loss), assets leabilities

The segment information on reportable segmentsigedvto the chief operating decision-maker for
the six-month periods ended June 30, 2011 and &8s follows:

Gamania Gameastor
For the six-month Digital Digital
period ended Entertainment Entertainment Gash Plus
June 30, 2011 Co., Ltd. Co., Ltd Co., Ltd Others Total
Revenue from
external customers $ 1,710,971 $ 373,730 § 792,251 $§ 724,998 § 3,601,950
Inter-segment
revenue 597,641 15,283 - 144,853 757,777
Segment profit (loss) 166,389 21,050 5,307 ( 24,653) 168,093
Depreciation and
amortization ( 136,210) ( 37,646) ( 18) ( 69,515) ( 243,389)
Income tax expense ( 68,177) 52 ( 1,087) ( 18,687) ( 87,899)

Investment income

(loss) accounted for

under the equity

method ( 126,226) - - 124,557 ( 1,669) (Note)
Segment assets - - - - -

Gamania Gameastor

For the six-month Digital Digital
period ended Entertainment Entertainment Gash Plus
June 30, 2010 Co., Ltd. Co., L.td Co., Ltd Others Total
Revenue from

external customers $§ 1,989,786 $ 277,170 $ - % 528,574 % 2,795,530
Inter-segment revenue 3,166 28,757 - 141,945 173,868
Segment profit (loss) 160,337 17,048 - 15,566) 161,819
Depreciation and

amortization ( 139,530) ( 35,999) - ( 38,479) ( 214,008)
Income tax expense ( 71.950) ( 5,483) - 14,571) ( 92,004)

Investment income
(loss) accounted for
under the equity

method ( 102,985) - - 99,203  ( 3,782) (Note)
Segment assets - - - - -

Note: The inter-segment investment income or loss leas keliminated.



(4) Reconciliation information of segment profivgk), assets and liabilities

The segment reports provided to the chief operatiagision-maker are measured in a manner
consistent with that used for the income statememhere is no difference between the presentation
of segment report and income statement and acgbydimo reconciliation is required to be disclosed.



